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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
("GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may
be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with
neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to
forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks
arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on
GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the
companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics
of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional
and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM
is publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue
paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly,
prospective investors should note that they need to have
access to the GEM website at http://www.hkgem.com in order
to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of
this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of
Plasmagene Biosciences Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief, (1) the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all
opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and
careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions
that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
S 2

On behalf of the board of directors (“the Board”) of the FANBREZARAESFE ([EFG))RER
Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), | have pleasure to RAIREWBAR ([FEE]) BEZSTF X
present the results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2006 A=+HIE+TZERA(HE 22 FE£ERE -
("the Year").

Attributable to the revenues generated from the introduction BE—F FAEEEBTRER  HED
of HBeasy and Fibroscan testing services, the Group has over the 20.7% + £ E A AHBeasy A K T 4 4 1L 17 2208
past one year seen a steady growth in its business — an annual AEARB % SEBEBEEET LA -#A
growth rate of 20.7%. As the population who suffers from cancerous AEMRARDIEFEER MEBRREEN
diseases is increasing, people in Hong Kong cares more and more BEFLAMHBEY - 1@%”@%%%@%%%%?\
about their health. However, patients who suffer from carcinoma of Rt AEERTEERMELSLERENS
nasopharynx represents a comparatively small proportion of BASRE 2 BERMEEM— ?5”53’]&_%2/@']
cancerous diseases in Hong Kong. Thus, apart from continuing to AR LEEEEWE -
provide quality and accurate tests for carcinoma of nasopharynx,
we will also provide a series of health screening services in order to
solidify our operating revenues.

To enlarge the Group's profit base, we will in the new financial REBREEZBMNER  FEENE B
year extend our services to medicinal and healthcare related services, PR2HERAZBEREAECEBTE 8
including medical and healthcare scheme management, Chinese ERREREBFIEE $HREDERYE  RER
medicinal diagnosing services, the distribution and retail of healthcare BEERoUHETESE  AEEBERENR
and medical products, etc. And these medical and healthcare related BEBTBEEEEHERT  T2EERZEEER
services will not only be developed in Hong Kong but also in the 2T e
PRC.

Like other countries in the world, the tremendously large HEADZEN  MAMEHEMBER &
population in the PRC is facing aging problems. And the aging FTEHAOZHEE ADZLHBERERE
population thus drives an incessant increase in the demand for BEQFRME2MGM - Lo PEBERFEH
medical services and medical products. On the other hand, the WARBELR  TERAHBERBEZELH
continual rise in the PRC's GDP further fuels the demand for medical Ko RBEBERERRASRERT  ERIFRTE
and medicinal quality. According to a survey report prepared by an MmiZRED630EET - RFEEREKMSEHENR
international authority, the world’s non-prescribed drug market has 6% BERTIEMA11% BFERERABEIFER T
reached US$63 billion with the PRC representing a mere proportion EMBPERGRZER b2 2REMNKT
of not more than 6%. However, it has been growing an impressive % AkAEEBEGRALERENEAZT
annual rate of 11% - the fastest growing country for non-prescribed %o EEMMACESRBENEZEREHAR
drugs and it ranks the 4th in terms of market size. In view of this, Eﬂ?zﬁﬁi@%ﬁ TEREZEANRBBEE -
the Group will actively develop this emerging growth market. The TEOREREREL —MES -

newly appointed directors of the Group are seasoned in operating
and distributing medical products in the nation and also harness an
extensive human network and rapport. It is therefore anticipated
that they will contribute to developing this new business for the
Group.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
S 2

Hong Kong has always been a competitive market for healthcare AERRERSEMSUAAZIAZ - AT
product retailers. Nevertheless, the market has demonstrated a stable BEXEE METRBETIFEER  HEEAS
demand: its population is in general health conscious and thus results RE@BRERY  WEAEETRERBRZIR
in an increasing demand for health supplements. To this end, the REMNTERE -

Group envisages itself to be developing a health food retailing
network in Hong Kong.

The investment market in Hong Kong has been burgeoning EEREMSMMAE  EBERMFEL
with a sustaining growth in its equity market. The Group’s cash in A AEEFERTR  RFREEZER -
hand is relatively abundant. In order to optimise the Group’s return EERRATLEINERREELMRFLTE
on investment the Directors have decided to set aside a portion of oA LARRISCEREERE =i
its cash for investing in listed and unlisted securities, including E-—HBEREEZRINER -

healthcare related securities that demonstrate a good potential for
future growth, so as to enhance the Group’s profitability.

The Board is confident about the Group’s business for the new AEBEEREARTUBFEZEBER
financial year as a result of the outlook I have reportedly sketched. | FREED  AANMBLHEZRHAEZERRFIR
heartedly hope that the Group will perform a good business results EEEXRE - HE AASBHEMERIAETET
for our shareholders in the year to come. In conclusion, | would like BE—FRNBNIE URSREHENZ
to extend my appreciation to our staff's strenuous work in the past Fo

year and the relentless support of our shareholders.

Lui Chi Wah, Johnny T
Chairman BEE
Hong Kong, 21 September 2006 %% 2006F9H 218

Plasmagene Biosciences Limited 46 % B & 4 #34 FRA 4] m



ANNUAL REPORT 2006 £ #

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B MW K b

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND XERKRE

For the year ended 30 June 2006, the Group recorded a turnover BZ20066F6 A30HILFE - REEMEX¥E
of approximately HK$ 1,368,000 (2005: approximately HK$1,133,000) #) /1,368,000 Jr (20054 : 491,133,000/
and a net loss attributable to shareholders of approximately 7T) - BRRPE(RFE 1B R4 49,570,000/ 7t (2005
HK$9,570,000 (2005: approximately HK$5,591,000). The basic loss % 1 95,591,000 7T) - FREREIELN H2.55%8
per share was approximately 2.55 HK cents (2005: approximately fill (20054 : #91.62384L) -

1.62 HK cents).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for EEeEE T REBE2006F6A30HIEFE
the year ended 30 June 2006. B S e
FINANCIAL REVIEW g e

Turnover of the Group are mainly derived from the cancer AEENEEBTIEREBE  BEREH
diagnostic testing services of £Bgene, EBeasy and EBcombo. The HELERAZE RS RS - HBeasyR T LB £
Group's new hepatitis B DNA test, HBeasy, was launched to the f A% A B B 7 2005 S A HEHE T ©
market in May 2005. In addition, the Hong Kong Hepatitis Diagnostic SN TRR2005F 12 ARV BAFAZEHHL - I
Centre was established in late December 2005 with the purchase of BE— gtk (—BEmiset s
a machine named Fibroscan (a state of art machine which can AR A FT 8 4 & = 1) 4 m B 2 28) A E AT
measure the amount of liver fibrosis in chronic hepatitis B patients) MR RN T o HBeasy & T i # (b 1 16 Bl &
for early diagnosis of certain liver diseases. Both HBeasy and HARAEETERBENBA - BEAEERFEA
Fibroscan test generated steady revenue and contributed to the BRARERELER -

increase in the gross revenue of the Group for the year.

The Group’s sales less cost of sales represented approximately HZE2006F6A30BILFEN - REBERHE
4.4% of turnover for the year ended 30 June 2006 which was BREHEERAE  NHHEEENI4%  LHEZE
dropped when compared with that of year ended 30 June 2005, 20056 30 ILFE A T5% B IR « EF
which was approximately 7.5% of turnover. This is mainly due to Z 2R H R FEL 115,000 706 B RE T
the fair value of share options granted to laboratory staff of a BRACEBRZEET (ZERENRATEANAREE
subsidiary amounted to approximately HK$115,000 (representing BEH8.4%)  URAFERHENATUEEF S
8.4% of turnover) and charged as direct salaries within cost of sales AR MENFEASEVEZEIL - AME
for the year. There were no such expenses for the previous year. TEERY AR -BEEBRESRERESH
However, the effect was lessened by (i) no royalties are payable BEHRE(PCRNABEZFEDER - AR
since 28 March 2006 because of expiry of the patent relating to 200653 H28 A REALNEFNE « RINAHANE
gene amplification process known as polymerase chain reaction HRARREHOZBARARENEERD

(“PCR") technology in Hong Kong; and (ii) free tests offered to the
general public through seminars were decreased during the year.

Net loss of the Group amounted to approximately HK$9,570,000 BIE2006F6 A308 L FEAREERFEE
for the year ended 30 June 2006, representing an increase of /9,570,000 7T - LL¥fEI £ 200556 H30H ILF
approximately 71% as compared to that of approximately EA#)5,591,000/8 L& MAIT71% o FEEEINE
HK$5,591,000 for the year ended 30 June 2005. The increase in ERANRNENREEFEREBRER] —BM
net loss is mainly due to (i) impairment losses of intangible assets oo AR ER T2 E S MRS MR R
amounted to approximately HK$3,158,000 relating to both diagnostic MEFEERBELRLN A3 1580008 T : (iVEE
tests and services and research and development of foetal maternal FEREFTAMERNLM  R>GiAEE20065F
tests as discussed under the paragraph headed “Business 6A30RIEFEMBHEATEL 1,919,000 T
development” in this section; (i) increase in product certification VHEGEENERPERNERE -

and registration expenses; and (iii) fair value of share options granted
for the year ended 30 June 2006 totalling amounted to approximately
HK$1,919,000 and recognised in the consolidation income statement.
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The unrealised holding loss of the investment in five-year BIE2006F6A30B ILFE - FHE4%M A
treasury notes of the United States (the “US Treasury Notes”) with FHEXBERAER ((ZEBEEEE]) ERERE
interest rate of 4% per annum (included under "Other operating ERAEX(PREGAUERTHIHEMEES
expenses” in the consolidated income statement) was amounted to 1) #/5332,0008 7T « ILABERBEARBOEH
approximately HK$332,000 for the year ended 30 June 2006. Such #1307,00078 TEVRE(SE M B APTIREE - WLIBIRE
unrealised loss of HK$332,000 was largely compensated by the GHEAIKERREATEARZEREE] -

attributable interest income of approximately HK$307,000. This
investment is classified as “Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss”.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT ERBRE

Marketing efforts have been made for the research test kits for A 20054 K 2006F6A30B 1L S FERN -
foetal maternal diseases during year ended 30 June 2005 and 2006. BHNEBREERARAASETTSEE - B
However, the Group has not made any sales of these research test REIE - AEENREEELHARARAR - R
kits up to date. According to the latest clinical update, the older BRONBERAGE RENBRERNTEERE
and more traditional standard non-invasive method, if used with BUERE WREHEERAREST  AJNER
the right timing and combination, can achieve a higher than 90% BR0%MERE URAERGEEE - Exai]
sensitivity for the detection of Down’s syndrome. This dampened EREMRBROFAAZNER - AEBEE
completely the demand for any new kits in the research stage. The ERSRE—SHREEMAE AXSHMLE
Group continued to try to seek further research into other W RERR-—EZXRMBETERGBREHE
methodologies or other business opportunities in the foetal maternal HOEREBE - FERERENER - BER
field using the same basic scientific platform. However, no satisfactory EENDERS (RIEEBE EBS - EiMA -
results can be obtained in the past year. Moreover, the Group’s HBeasy R FF i L B HAOAF) BELZFHEB
diagnostic tests (including EBgene, EBeasy, EBcombo, new tests of B -ERBASARENEE MRALEL
HBeasy and Fibroscan test) incurred losses for the past years. In R EREAESHEREENKREERZER
view of the poor sales and research and development results, the BIEAEE -

management made its decision to make an impairment loss for the
full carrying value of the intangible assets.

Despite the setbacks in the foetal maternal field, Plasmagene BAESRBRZAAELPEINLYS - KD
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has obtained AMZEWBAR  EHRERARRDT - R2006
its BS EN 1SO 9001: 2000 (certificate no. FS 99559) on 24 February F2H248 - HU/5BS EN 1SO 9001: 2000 (& BB X
2006 and BS EN ISO 13485: 2003 (certificate no. MB 98634) on 13 SR EEFS 99559) KRR - N 2006F 4K 138
April 2006 for the scope of “The design, development and production EU{§BS EN 1SO 13485: 2003 (& B X 1 5% 15 MB
of in vitro diagnostic devices for the clinical use and services 98634) RE © s RBEBE IR - BRRE
laboratory to detect Epstein-Barr virus (EBV), Hepatitis B virus (HBV) ERNCEHEVERRKRAARRERE TER
and associated cancers”. ENRABRES CRFAREFERE] -
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The registration of test kit of £EBgene in the Food and Drug EBEEEBRMENEERRTEBERREM
Administration (the “FDA") of the United States and the State of REMERRNZMABEEETR MAER
Food and Drug Administration (the “SFDA") of the People’s Republic BE - AEFEEMEBRRREMEERREVS
of China (the “PRC") is under way and in good process. The Group RRTARER  WrAlfeH 2 —FREERUT
has submitted preliminary clinical study results to FDA. Further data FREZTARE - R2006F 63 AEBEE A UM 2
may be required to complete the FDA application. In June 2006, the F 22 REREBBANCERZFELRE S - B
Group has fulfilled the essential requirements of the relevant BISORCERFERBBEEEXERDENERB R
European health, safety and environmental protection legislation of BB R R MR EEYERRIE R G M e
CE Marking. The certification of 1SO and CE Marking should pave AMEE ARFEBEREE 2 RRE RE
the way for the successful registration of the FBgene in FDA and MEEEPH  AARRMNEAR -

SFDA, and also the marketing of the Group’s tests and products to
the PRC, Japan and Australia.

Diagnostic screening plans have been established in January PHBRBTE DR 2005F1 AABEBHN—KRA
2005 for both normal individuals and/or cancer patients in Hong TR/ ERBERARY - WEHEIHEMELD
Kong. These plans are offered with co-marketing efforts with other BREGHERATHAKE - BRBATIGHE
well-known diagnostic and life sciences companies. Currently, there B FmENY  BREBE~BEELEEREA
are over 600 enrolled members, and the numbers are increasing 2m mMASAMNBE EEENG  AETEE
every month through these joint marketing efforts. Work has also AEREREBETANERRAIFHEE - A
been done to include inflammatory markers to predict early cancer - EAERBRERRFEMEE -

detection. This methodology, however, is still in the development
and research stage.

The molecular testing laboratory workshop (the “Diagnostic FUR—BRPOLAND FEANRATEE
Workshop”) in a body-check centre is scheduled to be open in early ([ ITIEZ]) BR2007FEN/EE  BH2HT
2007. It is expected that the Diagnostic Workshop will provide a EERREE 2 BREARATREEZ
wide range of laboratory tests to doctors, clinics, hospitals, and NEREARRE EERAAEENBALE
general public. The Directors believe that it will broaden the revenue B Ut 1 4% 08 -

of the Group.

PRODUCT LAUNCH Em#EH

The Group launched the hepatitis B DNA test, namely HBeasy REBR200595 A # 1 H 2 RIFF R B S0
in May 2005 and Fibroscan test in January 2006. Both tests started ZBE B, - % A HBeasy + LA K 720064 1 73 H#E H AT
earning revenue at a steady pace. BurtmEAH MEARXCHERGEEYR

Ao

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT HER A

The Group continued its research and development in the AEEEEET - REEASOMEIE
general cancer test which aims to detect cancer through the analysis EUBRCEBERAREBENDRKMBZF
of the presence of certain proteins, DNA and RNA in blood plasma HPTEERFENETELE « MaRB%BERZ
or serum which is linked to cancerous diseases. Recently the MZBEAEANEE BN AEEARB—HELE
inflammatory markers were also tested to see if they can be used as BRNEZRR & TERERKERERA
early cancer markers since inflammation is now known to be one of ARBAAERHRENER  RECHERE
the important elements for cancer development. This is intended to BB -

be used as a general screening test for cancers.
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HPV test for cervical cancer is a urine test that can be used as a AFEERETHHPVAIR R —BERRAH -
supplement to pelvic examination. A community test was done in NARAERBEREN BT E - R2005F4 A #1T
April 2005 and about 50 participants were involved in the trial test. HERE - HBESOAZMERAH - BE[E L
The test has not demonstrated to be commercially viable at this TE B 5048 R P A R P AR o
stage.

A preliminary evaluation of the anti-ageing diagnosis panel for —JEAFREASEN EALTMRTFNNEE
those individuals that are aged over 45 was completed in April PHERETHNLE 220065548 %
2006. The results showed that the demand of the anti-ageing B BERET HRRZ0RRABENTERIL R
treatments and testing may not be as strong as expected. The test MREMBABER - RRGBFHIBEERERAS
has not demonstrated to be commercially viable at this stage. REE W -

In the latter part of December 2005, the Group has completed TE2005F N2AMBRERRE AEEETKE
the initial evaluation of the use of other new markers for general AEMEZELA—BREREE  MEERR  EF
cancer screening such as leptin, osteopontin, prolactin, insulin like E0 - #EILAx ERESENRET NBEEQB
growth factors, pepsinogen | and gastrin 17. The results so far are RIRBBENVTENT LT o & RIAKAHELE
not ready for a commercial launch. BEER -

SALES AND MARKETING HERTHER

As explained in the paragraph headed “Business development” FMAEGHRERIZEBERIN —BRMAM - K
in this section, sales and marketing efforts have been directed EEEE N A BEHETER TSN RET
towards the development of non-invasive foetal maternal tests. EREHERTHERE - A - 251 KRG H
However, no sales are recorded. g

The Group will continue its sales and marketing on its existing AEESHEFRAHAE  VTHEMDE
and newly established diagnostic tests though public seminars and REMBBRAAEFEE - BOKES ATREL
co-operations with other diagnostic and biotechnology companies. BHBANEMELER °

Some of them have shown promise and have contributed to an
increase of gross revenue.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS RRFERRE

In addition to the existing diagnostic testing services and REBMNZEAARBERERIN  KEEE
products, the Group plans to diversify its business in the near future. FEBREL AKENTEEESRIRAM
The new management of the Group is more keen on developing X% HPeEERRREERNHEEERKRE
new business including selling of medical and healthcare products £33

and investment activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B OB R kK& oy b

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES RBEERPBER

As at 30 June 2006, the Group held cash and bank balances of R200656A30H + REEMBR G RIRTHEH
approximately HK$18,039,000 (2005: approximately #)7%18,039,0007% 7t (20054 : #724,863,0007%
HK$24,863,000). In July 2004, the Group had invested in US Treasury JT) © PR20045 7R AEEREREBEESR
Notes with market value as at 30 June 2006 amounted to % 2006568308 M MELA7,399,000%
approximately HK$7,399,000. Net current assets amounted to T o MEEEFEX A25,442,000/ 7T (20054 ¢
approximately HK$25,442,000 (2005: approximately #)32,883,000 L) < MBI %X (RERABREE
HK$32,883,000). Current ratio (defined as total current assets divided ERULEREERE) £/540.065 (20059 : 4961.2
by total current liabilities) was approximately 40.0 times (2005: &) o

approximately 61.2 times).

The Group had no bank borrowing as at 30 June 2006 (2005: R2006F6A30H  REBELERITER
Nil). (20054 : £&) ©
CAPITAL STRUCTURE BEXGR

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM on 18 June ARARAR2004F 67188 ([ ETHEE])
2004 (the “Listing Date”). There has been no change in the capital FRIZERLET - ARBNERLEHBEARAF LT
structure of the Company since the Company’s Listing Date. Up to ZBERITESE) - HE2006F67308 LFE -
the year ended 30 June 2006, the Group’s net assets were financed AEBEMEEFEDURKNRBEEZ - %2006
by share capital and reserves. Total equity attributable to shareholders F6HA30H - REEMHRALEEL 727,864,000/
as at 30 June 2006 was approximately HK$27,864,000 (2005: 7t (20054 : 4936,993,000/ L) °

approximately HK$36,993,000).

Most of the trading transactions, assets and liabilities of the AEENABHEERS EEEBFEHU
Group were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States BT R ETTAME © R20065 64308 « AEEWE
dollars. As at 30 June 2006, the Group had no significant exposure B RIMNE R ER B o
to foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT ERARE

As at 30 June 2006, the Group and the Company had no 1200656 H30R - REBRADAHMEER
significant capital commitment. BRI o
SEGMENT INFORMATION DEER

The Group principally engaged in two business segments, one AEEFEREMEEB I - Aol AREMR
is the provision of diagnostic testing services and the other is research P RARRS KR ERE

and development.

Currently, the Group conducts its business in Hong Kong only. BAl AEEEERBLEHER -

m Plasmagene Biosciences Limited 46 % B 4 4 #3 f R3]
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B OB w K& o b

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION EEEH

A breakdown of the number of staff of the Group by 20064 % 20059 6 A308 « B E 2K
responsibilities as at 30 June 2006 and 2005 is set out below: REBBETHBEWT :

2006 2005
20065 20054

Management ERE 2

Sales and marketing HERT SRR 3

Research and development Tt 9% B B¢

(including implementation (BERRHEAEE
of laboratory for the MAREEMEHNERE)
provision of the Group's
testing services) 3
Administration and finance THRI% 3 3
1 11

All the employees are stationed in Hong Kong. MEREBEHRERS

The Group remunerates its employees based on industry’s FEBERENFHIRETEESNREER
practices and individual’s performance and experience. On top of RELHRMmMET -KETHFMIN  ARFER
regular remuneration, share options may be granted to eligible staff 200454 H20 B IR MBI ST &) - BRI A R E
under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 20 NERBEREEXRFARNGEBREIR TRKE -
April 2004 by reference to the Group's performance as well as
individual's performance.

The Group maintains good relationship with its staff and there AEBRREETRERTHEE - B ol
has not been any labour disputes since incorporation. In addition to MY ARTEBEEEMBEAND - REXAE2
their basic salaries, employees also enjoy mandatory provident fund S BEMEZEREMAEE REMER -
and other fringe benefits.

The total staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments, amounted B ZE2006F6A30B EFEMBE THA (B
to approximately HK$3,812,000 for the year ended 30 June 2006 EEZH£) 4 53,812,000% 5t (2005 : 4
(2005: approximately HK$2,983,000). 2,983,000/ 7T) °
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES RREE

As at 30 June 2006, the Group had no significant contingent 200656 H30R - AREEUBMEANXAE
liabilities. f& o

CHANGE IN AUDITORS OF THE GROUP IN THE PRECEDING AEEEBRE=ZFBE2REMEEHER
THREE YEARS

Messrs. RSM Nelson Wheeler were first appointed as reporting A2003F8HSHBERALGEAITE LERR
accountants and auditors of the Company and its subsidiaries on 5 BAREMBARERARS AN RZEAM - 7
August 2003. Messrs. RSM Nelson Wheeler, who has been acting as WA EREGAMTEBETARE 2 R
auditors of the Group since then, will offer themselves for re- B WRARBIABRINBREBEF RS LA
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the RENEMERER -

Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B MW K b

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'S INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The proceeds from the Company’s issue of new shares from its
listing on GEM was HK$32 million. The listing expenses were
increased from HK$8 million as stated in the prospectus of the
Company dated 8 June 2004 to approximately HK$9.6 million. The
net proceeds from the listing is approximately HK$22.4 million. It
was mainly due to increase in professional fees and printing costs.
The use of net proceeds for the period from 3 June 2004 (being the
latest practicable date prior to the printing of the prospectus of the
Company) to 30 June 2006 are as follows:

ARRAERPHABRERDNAEREAR

ARRRAEIER LR ETHEOMEHXN
IEZ%SZ,OOO,OOO/%E FTERBAADER2004
F6A8HE MK BRERAE 8,000,000 T -
#ANZE 49,600,000/ 7T o EHFATEZ REFHEY
22,400,000 7C c FFATENEEAREEA
T BB KRR AL NATE - ;200456 A38 (A
AREBRERMENFIN & é‘maiﬁ)iizom
F6A30H LHM - IBHBERENT AR

Actual

(Approximately)

Planned BB

B (K&

Notes HK$ HK$

fit i BT BT

Patent expenditures EFRAX a 3,890,000 840,000

Product marketing EREE 9,310,000 1,115,000

Compliance requirements ERET 2,600,000 616,000

Research and development Bt 9T 2 e 8%

(including salaries and (BREFHE YR A)

material costs) d 2,240,000 1,616,000

18,040,000 4,187,000

Notes:

a.

Decrease in patent expenditures was mainly due to (i) termination
of four licence agreements in January 2005 and (ii) the territories
of two worldwide exclusive licence agreements have been restricted
to Japan, Australia, the PRC and Hong Kong only in February
2005. These significantly reduce the legal costs that would be
incurred during pursuance of worldwide patent applications.

Similar to patent expenses, decrease in product marketing and
research and development expenses was mainly due to termination
of four licence agreements in January 2005. The planned budget
will be used in other commercially viable testing services/products.

Plasmagene Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
has obtained its BS EN ISO 9001: 2000 (certificate no. FS 99559)
on 24 February 2006 and BS EN I1SO 13485: 2003 (certificate no.
MB 98634) on 13 April 2006 for the scope of “The design,
development and production of in vitro diagnostic devices for the
clinical use and services laboratory to detect Epstein-Barr virus
(EBV), Hepatitis B virus (HBV) and associated cancers”. Registrations
of the Group’s EBgene in the FDA and the SFDA are under way.
Currently, the Group focused on the registration of EBgene first in
the United States and the PRC so that planned budget for Japan
and Australia will be delayed.

Similar to patent expenses, decrease in research and development
expenses was mainly due to termination of four licence agreements
in January 2005. The planned budget will be used in other
commercially viable testing services/products.

m Plasmagene Biosciences Limited 46 % B 4 4 #3 f R3]
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a. EFRAIRLETERAHNG) 2005F 1A K14
B R 1R X (i) B 20054 2 A #2218 2 B8
REFERENLE  EREABE RN -
FERES o« WRABRDESKEIRER S
BEMEENLIEER -

BREREE - mi5HE R
D EERANE2005F 174 K 1E4TH
G E% RENBEESESEANAER
%?ﬁ% BRRERS/ERTE -

c. R2006%2A24H  ARRNEZEHBLREE
M ERE AR DA EEBS EN 1SO 9001: 2000
(& EHXFHFJ%FS 99559) & & Emooﬁ
4R 13H - B{5BS EN IS0 13485: 2003 (&

5% 15 MB98634) B B Fﬁﬁ&%ﬁl@%
(E&‘EJr CBEREERIINDE BV ERERA
ALRRERETERERFUBRES - LA
RREMERE]  c AEEMBEREHR H
ENERRETRERRMRENER RN
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LEBEEXBEEDARBAREEL AR
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES AND ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS COMPARISON
X6 H B ORI B CE B R MR

The following is a comparison of actual business
progress to the business objectives as set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 8 June 2004 (the
“Prospectus”).

Business objectives up to 30 June 2006 as set out in
the Prospectus:
BREBMEBEZ200656 A30AMXKEE :

Strategic development

RERR

Seeking opportunities from SARS test
e FE B AU b 4% R 5 5 S Pl

Planning and launching of worldwide campaign of test
for Down’s syndrome

AAERZREARRSAEAANERELS

Seeking opportunities to acquire third party diagnostic
technologies to complement the Group’s research
capabilities

REAREENARES  SHKEAREUARE=7E
B2 Bl

Forming strategic alliances with biotechnology
companies to carry out research into new testing
methodologies for detection of critical illnesses. Companies
in Hong Kong and the PRC will be the primary target for
such an alliance because exchange of information and
technologies would be easier

EAMMRRREREEEE st ENRERBOH
AR ZRERR - BB RPEMME DA REKH R
MEZARAA RHREBADMM AR ERBRER K
Rt E R E

TRABEREREREARAHEA2004F6A8HK
BRER([BRER]) THOBEEZHLE -

Actual business progress up to 30 June 2006:

EZE2006F6H30RMEREXBER :

Due to non-recurrence of SARS in Hong Kong and
very limited scale of SARS cases in the PRC, the Group did
not launch its SARS test

MRFHEAFBAYRAERTBER  mMAETETELR
TEMIFFARFHRMER - B E I8 I A b KO

Due to the success of the old traditional standard non-
invasive method, the Group has commenced to seek newer
methodology research in this test since the last half of
2005 while continue to see whether the older licences can
still be refined enough to yield a perfect test. Talks have
now begun to use a new third party technology to develop
this test

BREGEEFGEUETEZMERY - REBER
20056 T HFRBS KU AENENORR L - WIEH
REANBEAREETEERRUNEBREERRMAAMR

The process is ongoing, with no definite target is found

up to now
FRHEET WESURETHEEE

On 1 June 2005, the signing of an agreement with a
diagnostic pharmaceutical company for an alliance in the
diagnosis of cancer and heart disease in Hong Kong and
Macau. A rapid test using this technology may be useful as
a general cancer or inflammation screen

R20056 A1 - B—HZERERNTRTHE 5
REBRRFIDEREROEBAKER - —BHA LK
MERERARE - RERRRENES AR REER
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES AND ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS COMPARISON
X6 H B OB ECOBECE OB R MO8

Leasing laboratory facilities in Australia and Japan for
offering the Group’s testing services. Technicians at these
laboratories will collect and deliver blood samples to the
Group's laboratory in Hong Kong for further handling.
Testing results will subsequently be delivered to the overseas
customers

RENRBABREERERE  WREASZENAH
R - WEERENRMASGREDLREER  UEERE
EENEREHEE—SERE - AIRARENEREXRE
SNEE

Launching a worldwide campaign with a view to
forming close associations with other laboratories, health
institutions and government agencies for joint launches of
the Group’s testing services

BRHEAMEY  BENERNEMERE  BEBERX
TSI 1418 4 ) 2 R 4 0 6 B PR 75

To seek opportunities to acquire new diagnostic
technology that would complement the Group’s testing
services

R R 2 T BHR RO B DA R AN R B A0 B S IR S

Research and product development
R R E B &

EBcombo test
& it Al A R
- To continue the field testing and community research

BEBWAE R TR

Test for liver cancer

AR

- To complete the field testing and community research
TR E AR R EFR

m Plasmagene Biosciences Limited 46 % B 4 4 #3 f R3]

Preliminary marketing efforts show that it is impractical
to lease laboratory facilities until we have the FDA
registration

NFOTHEETERR  EASERGEERRE
MEERMBFEMA  BEEREREL FAI1T

Associations with a major pharmaceutical company and
a local biotech company in the launching of hepatitis B
testing were done in the last half of 2005. Further efforts
will be made with the newly acquired Fibroscan test

F2005F TH5F  M—ZENEYR AR —A 4D
RIEARGBERZFANR - KRB SEMNEH
B B e M A (15 e 2SR Gt 0 R SR 75

No good opportunity was found so far

ERBNAEIIRFOZH

Field testing has been completed and evaluation of
this test is being done at this moment. Further long term
follow up is necessary

B BRI - MR ERRIEAEETE

The original liver cancer test done by methylation
specific polymerase chain reaction (“PCR"), a difficult and
expensive test, is now replaced by the HBV DNA test,
HBeasy, which launched in May 2005 in Hong Kong. The
HBV DNA test have received ISO certification

RANRENMEEERSBEHERIE ([PCRI) ATED
FrRAABNREMAEXASE  HREAAFE AR
2005%F 5 A 0 # i #) 2 B BT 4% 5 & BRI S HBeasy T ER X
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES AND ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS COMPARISON
X6 H B ORI B CE B R MR

Test for prostate cancer

Bl 51 4% 7 B 5L

- To complete the laboratory and clinical testing, the
field testing and community research

e B KB R AR

EBonco test

EBonco il i1

- To complete the laboratory and clinical testing, and
the field testing and community research

TR RERZR TR B A R RTRE

Screening test for cancer

2 A A B ORI L

- To complete the field testing and community research
TR B 8 A Rt B R

EBsens test

EBsens 8 &

- To complete the laboratory and clinical testing, field
testing and community research

ERCERERAR  BlARERTR

Laboratory testing shows it is difficult and expensive
to carry out the methylation specific PCR test, which takes
over 1 day to complete. This test now is being replaced by
simpler tests under research such as prolactin and insulin
like growth factors and under laboratory and clinical
research. No positive result can be found as of this time

CREARER  FEALCLSEURaBEHARENR
WEET MEAKASS - ARABEH—RUAL < AIER
FARRME  WEEETHRNSEAAMDRK - it
AAERBEBESEERAT - AR EREETHER
BREBRIAR -  ERKILIDAREABOKE

The test has completed the laboratory part of the
research. Field testing was delayed due to difficulty of
finding the right clinical partner

ARAAAE RN CEHABREND - ARREKE
AENDAEHEMIRE KT &

The laboratory and clinical test is completed. The field
testing of a panel of general screening tests for cancer has
begun, a version of the test in the research format will be
available to the public in the latter part of 2006

TERERABREETK EREZE-REEES
A ) E RIS - AT R 20065 812 36 19 ) 2 R AR f DARR
KA ETRRIE A

Laboratory and clinical testing is near its completion
and the test should be available in the first half of 2006.
This test is ready for marketing to those patients that need
high sensitivity of EBV testing

L2 REBRSRBERTHK - AIR20065F F¥ FRER
EAR - ARAACEBRETETA - LFTEFRESN
EBR AR MR AR
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES AND ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS COMPARISON
X6 H B OB ECOBECE OB R MO8

Test for Down’s syndrome

B AR AR

- To complete the refinement of the test Due to the success of the old traditional standard non-
SRR EE KA ENR invasive method, the Group has commenced to seek newer

methodology research in this test since the last half of
2005 while continue to see whether the older licences can
still be refined enough to yield a perfect test. Talks have
now begun to use a new third party technology to develop
this test

AR EERTEFAGHER T ERERY - AEEB
R20055 TH FRBSKILARMERMERE - MBELE
MREENETEETBEEARANERERBAAFAK
R-MIEEFNREANNE=FRMRERILAH

To start laboratory and clinical testing of stem cell No immediate plan for research as of this moment
technology for treating cancer patients and replacing S WAREMBEITHRAE S

damaged organs and tissues
R AREREERARREERRRE RABZH A
F R 171 2 I B R OB L

To start laboratory and clinical testing of the study of No immediate plan for research as of this moment
the forms and nature of protein for the diagnosis of diseases e MR EVETHE MG S

R AMEERDEHARNEBE VR RILE LT
B B OB 5

Sales and marketing

HERTEHER

By first establishing and set product standards in its
laboratory for the following tests and then market the tests
to the appropriate end users, such as doctors in the
specialised field, the Group will launch the testing services
as follows:—

BRRTIARMERAEAERERERINETE
miFE  WMEENKRERE (PIINENBLE) HIHEE
A MASELSHODASARE  FEOT :

Launch of SARS test to government agencies in Hong Due to non-recurrence of SARS in Hong Kong and
Kong and the PRC if there is a SARS reoccurrence very limited scale of SARS cases in the PRC, the Group did

HWERABAER  THEBRPERBIEERFEFE not launch its SARS test
7Y i 4815, MRFEAFHRYBERTBER  METETELR
TEMIFABFHR AR - BN EE I B S IR fH A

‘/‘]Hl

E"l—lt
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Launch of EBgene test
e EBE B,
- in PRC

R

- inJapan

NSRS

- in Australia

i)l

Launch of EBeasy test
HEHEB SR,
- inPRC

iNGERE

- inJapan

IS

- in Australia

i)l

Launch of EBcombo test
A E A AR
- in PRC

R E

- inJapan

IS

X0 H B OE O KK B RN

Marketing efforts will be delayed until the SFDA
registration has been completed

MSEETERSTE EEMNTRERARRER
EEEERRRAEMFFTKAL

Marketing efforts will be delayed until the FDA
registration has been completed

MSHEETERSTE EZMNERRRENERR
R MR FTK AL

Marketing efforts will be delayed until the FDA
registration has been completed

MHEBEIERETE BEERAXBEARRENERR
RXMAMEBEFTKAL

Marketing efforts will be delayed until the SFDA
registration has been completed

MHEEEIFESSLEE BEEMNTRERRRARER
EEERRRRMEMBAFTKAL

Marketing efforts will be delayed until the FDA
registration has been completed

MEEBEIERETEE BEERAXBEAMENERR
REMAMBEFTKAL

Marketing efforts will be delayed until the FDA
registration has been completed

MEEBETIERETE BEZRAXBERMENERER
REMAMBEFTKAL

Marketing efforts will be delayed until the SFDA
registration has been completed

MZHEEIERELE BEZRAFEBRRMRER
EEEERRRAEMBFTKA L

Marketing efforts will be delayed until the FDA
registration has been completed

MSHEIEHELEE BEERXEARENERER
RIMEMBRFETKR L
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X6 H B OB ECOBECE OB R MO8

- in Australia Marketing efforts will be delayed until the FDA
AR registration has been completed
MGHEEIEHSTEE BEEZRNEERMENEER
RROFMEETH AL

Launch of liver cancer

e A R
- in Hong Kong The original liver cancer test done by methylation
NEE specific PCR, a difficult and expensive test, will now be
replaced by the HBV DNA test, HBeasy, for monitoring of
hepatitis B patients prone to the development of liver
cancer. HBeasy was launched in May 2005 and earned a
steady revenue
RENFECHEUBABEARE (B —RBHET
ERASSOAF) ETHFRAR BB H IR
mEEFE A HBeasyFTELR - # A Z B &0m A8 7]
AESI B MAT R - HBeasyE M 200565 A TS - IMATRE
- inPRC Marketing efforts will be delayed until the SFDA
R registration has been completed for the HBeasy
MEEETESSEER  EZHHBeasyRFBIBERE
mMREGEEERRRERNAMBBETK AL
- inJapan Since October/November 2004, marketing efforts have
NSE RN been made in Japan with end users. However, no sales was
recorded up to now
B2004510/ 11 AfE - ERBARRSKLZERERLT
MHEETLE - A - €5 L RFBHE
- in Australia Marketing efforts will be delayed until the FDA
NI registration has been completed for the HBeasy

MHEERTIEFSTE  HEEHBeasyREHRE MW
GEREBREERREIMEMEKR AL

Launch of test for prostate cancer
HE AT 51 B R ORI L
- in Hong Kong As explained in Research and Development in this
REE section before, this test is still in development stage and
no immediate plan for launching as of this moment
EMEREGAATHTEER] - A NEERRE
B B RA LG

Launch of EBonco test
H#e tH EBoncoifll &,
- in Hong Kong The test will undergo further community research and
RE & not ready to be launched as of this moment
RIBARFE - SRITHERRMELZS RAEET
%
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- inPRC The launch of EBonco will be delayed until we have
i success in the Hong Kong market
e TEH T EBonco EEBBNMIEIEKI AL

- in Australia The launch of EBonco will be delayed until we have
RN success in the Hong Kong market
e TEH T EBonco EEBBNMEIERI AL

- inJapan The launch of EBonco will be delayed until we have
NI success in the Hong Kong market
B EEEH T Boncor EERENMBEMERIN AL

Launch of EBsens test

H# H EBsens Bl &,
- in Hong Kong Marketing will begin latter part of 2006
REB 20065 K& R ZIBAFETH IS HEE
- inPRC Marketing efforts will be delayed until the SFDA
i registration for EBgene has been completed to pave the
way for this new but similar test
MSHEEIEHETE BEERBERNTERRAHR
PEREBERRRERNEMBBCKAARL - EURRE
I ERROUNAEEER
- in Australia Marketing efforts will be delayed until the FDA
RN registration for EBgene has been completed to pave the
way for this new but similar test
MSHEBEIEHETE BEERBERNEERREY
EERRIXMNAMBETKRIL - FARREMEEER
PLE) R E £
- inJapan Marketing efforts will be delayed until the FDA
=R registration for EBgene has been completed to pave the

way for this new but similar test

MSEETERSTE  BEERBEAXERMEY
EERRIXMNAMBETARIL - FHARREMEERR
PLE) R E £

Launch of test for pleural effusion
HE B A AOR) 3
- in Hong Kong During late June 2004 to end of 2004, marketing
RE B efforts have been made for these tests in Hong Kong and
no sale was made. Licence agreement was terminated in
January 2005
PR2004F6 A & B E2004F K - ERXRUFAARE
BETTISERIE  HURBEMES - R2005F1 ALK
IR 3k
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Launch of test for organ transplant failure, trauma and

stroke
REEBEAR  BERPRETIR
- in Hong Kong During late June 2004 to end of 2004, marketing
REE efforts have been made for these tests in Hong Kong and
no sale was made. Licence agreement was terminated in
January 2005
R2004F6 AR E20045 K @ EERULFUARES
ETTMEHERETE X RAERHEE - R2005F1 AR 1L
BEtE RS
- inJapan During late July 2004 to end of 2004, marketing efforts
RAZR have been made in Japan with end users and no sale was
made. Licence agreement was terminated in January 2005
R2004F7H R BE2004FE - CEAUFHARA
ARAFREEREETTSHERELE ARG EMAEE -
7200551 7 42 1E 15 w42 16 %
- in Australia and to appoint hospitals and laboratories During late July 2004 to end of 2004, marketing efforts
as sub-licensees have been made in Australia with end users and no sale
RBEN ZREREBRE(CRAABRITIFEA was made. Licence agreement was terminated in January

2005

MR2004F7R A E2004F K ' BEREAISBHNER
MAFRREBERETTEHEELIE X REGEIMEE -
FA2005 1 B &R I ET i &

Launch of test for beta HCG

B ABREE R MERBEAR
- in Hong Kong Since late June 2004, marketing efforts have been
REE made for these tests in Hong Kong. However, no sales of

these research kits up to date even there were preliminary
and promising discussions with some end users
H2004F6 A TARMG  EEBBRULZAFETTS
HETE- - AERNHEREREETVIERLRES
ARBRNER - A ESUHFHRELREGFHE

Launch of test for HPL
i REILZIHR
- in Hong Kong Since late June 2004, marketing efforts have been
REE made for these tests in Hong Kong. However, no sales of
these research kits up to date even there were preliminary
and promising discussions with some end users
H200466 A TARG - EEBBERUF G ETTS
HEIE - IEEAHEREREETNIEFLRES
AMBHER - A €5 USEHRSALREFHE

Launch of test for stomach cancer

He S AR
- inJapan Since late July 2004, marketing efforts have been made
IS in Japan with end users. However, no sales was recorded

up to now
H2004F7A ARG EEBAMKEEREETH
GHBEIE - Al ESUREGEHE
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Launch of foetal sex test for X-linked diseases
HHABBRBREIERRB AR MR
- in Hong Kong The foetal sex test for X-linked diseases was delayed
NEES due to the ethical reason of sex selection
EREEHNEERE  RILCEERRBRE K
R A BR T BRI

- inJapan Since October/November 2004, marketing efforts have
NI been made in Japan with end users. However, no sales was
recorded up to now
H20045 10/ 11 ABE ERBAREKEERERTT
TSERIE A £S5 T REGFHE
- in Australia No suitable partner has been found in Australia as of
AR now
S ARERMNKEGEEIERH

Launch of EBgastric test

HE i EBgastricl 3
- in Hong Kong The target of EBgastric will be replaced by a general
REE screening test panel based on the use of pepsinogen | and
Gastrin 17 which are now under laboratory and clinical
research

#1TEBgastricBl M E 2 - em—RELERH T EM
B ZAEDNABEEABR RBBX17GREET
BB RBRE) #1780

Launch of test for Down’s syndrome
HE B AR & B 5L
- in Hong Kong Due to the success of the old traditional standard non-
REE invasive method, the Group has commenced to seek newer
methodology research in this test since the last half of
2005 while continue to see whether the older licences can
still be refined enough to yield a perfect test. Talks have
now begun to use a new third party technology to develop
this test
MREREERREFRGEFTEZRERY - R
2005F FHFRI SRR EHOMEFE - 3R EH
REANETRETHERRNERETERARKR -
ERARBRERALE = AR UER AR

- inPRC Due to the success of the old traditional standard non-
i invasive method, the Group has commenced to seek newer
methodology research in this test since the last half of
2005 while continue to see whether the older licences can
still be refined enough to yield a perfect test. Talks have
now begun to use a new third party technology to develop
this test

HREREERZEFRAEGEAERERY - BN
2005 THFREFRIEBANERHR L - MR EH
REANETREETEENRNERNETERARAKR -

EARARBERALE = AR LR
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- inJapan

ISR

Launch the screening test for the cancer potential of
patients harbouring EBV reactivations
REREB TRENRA (GAALBEERNGBRS)
A B R
- in Hong Kong

REE

Launch the screening test for cancer
He R iR BRI
- in Hong Kong

REE

Launch the Rhesus D test
A E R
- in Australia

W)l

- inJapan

IS

Provide easy access for its customers to order the
Group’s testing services through the Internet and for delivery
of blood specimens to its laboratory in Hong Kong by the
Group's website

FROMBRAEERE RMETRHEERENG
T AEABAEENAARBREARNARAZERER
LR BB 808 P

m Plasmagene Biosciences Limited 46 % B 4 4 #3 f R3]

Since October/November 2004, marketing efforts have
been made in Japan with end users. However, no sales was
recorded up to now

B2004510/ 11 ARE - ERBARRSKEZERERTT
TRERIE - Al £5WREGFHEE

The use of such a screening test will await the final
results of the clinical testing of EBonco in 2006

#2006 F MIFEBoncofR R A HAMI R ERE - g
RERBRMZARBRH

Some of the new tests will be available in the latter
part of 2006
B R R 2006 F £ i fS AT HE T @

Since October/November 2004, marketing efforts have
been made in Australia with end users. However, no sales
was recorded up to now

B2004F 10/ 11 AR - BERBRMNAZKEREET
MGHEELE AW E5TRBEEHEE

Since October/November 2004, marketing efforts have
been made in Japan with end users. However, no sales was
recorded up to now

H2004510/ 1M ARE - ERBAMSEKRFEREEST
MGHEELIE AW E5LRBEEBHEE

At this moment, customers in Hong Kong have been
catered to by the use of our daily collection and delivery
service. For more international targets, marketing efforts
will be delayed until the FDA registration for EBgene has
been completed to pave the way for a worldwide
recognition of the product

ERBEEASERHNRABEREAZRE - BREE
AEENFE -ZEREMBERTSIE  THEEIES
BLE  BEEMEBEMAEERRENERE BREXNTM
RETKAIL  BURERFRE2HANEEMIELER
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES

Mr. Lui Chi Wah, Johnny, aged 46, is a prominent and EEELE  BFl6em BREENERTH
seasoned financial professional. He has been financial analyst for REZEAT - aLEERSHAETERFR TR
major brokerage firms, and stock commentator and columnist for ERAOMIE  URARBEERBEIRTARE
public media. With more than fifteen years experience in Hong RER - RERABTAFE2RANER &
Kong's financial sector, Mr. Lui has gained strong rapport with EEEEABRERIY  REFZLERIETN
entrepreneurs and has developed close ties with many enterprises, BE LHEHERBEARTBEASEEERRECA
especially those in the medical and healthcare industry in Hong Ao BEAER2006F8A2BEZEARRAIZE
Kong and China. Mr. Lui was appointed as chairman, executive B 8$178F THEIRFTHZEEKE A
Director, chief executive officer and a member of remuneration FOANBEZITAEREMT -

committee of the Company on 2 August 2006. He was also
appointed as compliance officer of the Company on 22 August

2006.

Mr. Wu Kai, aged 41, graduated from Department of Traditional RBRE BFME - T1985FZEREN
Chinese Material Media of Gui Yang College of Traditional Chinese LEGTMPREREEARNEHEEEE L2
Medicine in Guizhou Province (BM&EEHMHBERFELZX) in fl- REAHEATHFABE T ENHEE R
1985 and obtained his bachelor’s degree in Medicine. Mr. Wu has EiEsm METEEMNBERRETFEZERR
over 15 years of sales and marketing experience in the il REEBRBPEFBHEB S VREXZEY
pharmaceutical field. He has also worked in key management REMNEEGTEHRIEHHNEZESZE - R
positions in pharmaceutical companies in Guizhou. Mr. Wu is a FEMR200668A 2B BZERARAZHTE
member of FEIFEELDe LW FEEZES and EMEERTE E

FAEBUA T Z B2, Mr. Wu was appointed as executive Director
on 22 August 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FHUTES

Mr. Lau Kam Shan, aged 51, has been engaged in the business ElekE  BESm RPRIRERKRE
of retail clothing in the PRC and the export of fabric from the PRC EXBRAEHLOFBEME  WEEREZNH
to the United States. Mr. Lau has extensive experience in textile BENR—WEZLER - AKX EBRBYI Feng
business and general trading and is currently a director of Yi Feng Enterprises Limited M & % © 25 £112002F 8 A
Enterprises Limited. Mr. Lau was appointed as non-executive Director SHEZERIFNTES -

on 8 August 2002.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BYFHTES

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim, aged 31, graduated from Hong Kong BHAERE BF3 BEEEERES
University of Science and Technology (bachelor of business BB (INEREL)  YREFERIARE
administration), and obtained his master degree from Hong Kong BrEA(FEBHEERE)  REAREZRELHA
Polytechnic University (China business studies). Mr. Kwok is chief EERMNERDAE (RO : 8290) 2 ER G5
financial officer of Tianjin Tianlian Public Utilities Company Limited MkPEBEREEBRERLA (RORE :
(stock code: 8290). He is also a non-executive director of China 8270) ZIHITES - BLEARBBHT SR
Leason Investment Group Co., Ltd (stock code: 8270). Mr. Kwok is eREAGHMAEEE  WECEME UK
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants EERFTHIEHRELELH - SERER2006F
("ACCA") and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants IABRELZEIARRRIEBIFNTES  BRZE
("HKICPA"). Mr. Kwok is experienced in the field of corporate EENENERABNALRLRGTMEESK

finance, financial management and audit. Mr. Kwok was appointed
as independent non-executive Director, chairman and a member of
audit committee and a member of remuneration committee of the
Company on 13 September 2006.

\
”

Mr. Chan Po Kwong, aged 50, is a merchant for the past REXEE  BFS0R ERE-TEHR
twenty years. He has been engaging in real estates business in BA - BREEATEBBRIMMREFMERS - &£
Hong Kong and overseas. He has worked in key executive positions BE DNBEREPEARE MIFHERAT
in different trades, services including retail and wholesale of AMEZ BREEEADERNTE RILHEF
importing products for Hong Kong, Asian countries and Mainland TETHEBE BREERATRARFREFES
China. Mr. Chan is a director of various companies with extensive MEEBLENELSHE RARERKENK
experience in business restructuring, corporate financing and B E1993F - thERMEATEE I TIXEE
investments. Mr. Chan was appointed as an independent non- REIMRIHEREA o BREER2004F 12 1A EZE
executive Director on 1 December 2004. RBULFRITES -

Mr. Wong Kin Fung, aged 55, is a health administrator and BEEERE  BFS5mc REREEABRY
has worked in key position in both insurance and healthcare LEBRBARNREARDEZZREE -FEER
companies. Mr. Wong has over 29 years of experience in strategic ERRDMNAEZR29FREFERBETE - B
planning, contract negotiation, operations management, process re- &R BEHEE EVETIERF  RBEEE
engineering, facilities management and claims in both Hong Kong RRE - FBRERFEREZEIBEMMNENE MK
and Asia. Mr. Wong was graduated from University of Utah, Salt B BHEEEEEN  sAEREIENMMNAES
Lake City, Utah, United States with bachelor degree in sciences of RS R SBQP Inc BN R T8N — I
pharmacy. Mr. Wong is a licensed pharmacist of State of California EREHRBIEEREEE - BREN2006F3H22
and Territory of Guam and a certified instructor of Service Plus for AEZERBUFNITES

Quality Improvement Process of QIP Inc. Mr. Wong was appointed
as independent non-executive Director on 22 March 2006.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT BREEE

Ms. Leung Kwan Yu is the financial controller, the company RBOLZTARERAMBEBE RAIMER
secretary and the qualified accountant of the Company who is SEERGHE BEASENYBHEEEERR
responsible for the financial and accounting management and WMEEK -RULIREERTAZEE B#ET
secretarial affairs of the Group. Ms. Leung graduated from City HEELEMN  WABRASHMAEEERRKE
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor of degree in accountancy. ROTARGHMAEEREE - RRLTMN2002F
She is an associate member of HKICPA and a fellow member of the THMEREHE -

ACCA. Ms. Leung joined the Group in July 2002.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES EEERERTR

The Company endeavors in maintaining high standard of ARNA—MBAREFRKEZREERIN
corporate governance for the enhancement of shareholders’ value. BB EEE - EE Z2006F6 A30H IEFE - &
The Company has complied with the required code provisions set NEIEETRIER AR5 EE R
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in BRTRPTRENGRD - AT 2mBERIM

Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules for the year ended 30 June
2006, except for the following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1 FRIRBIA.2.1

This code stipulates that the role of chairman and chief executive BTFRREERRTHAEHEAREES B
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the TEBAR—AEME - REIE20065F6 308 2 4F
same individual. During the year ended 30 June 2006, Dr. Yeung ER - BEBRBERARAINER RTHAEH (15
Wah Hin, Alex (“Dr. Alex Yeung") is the chairman and chief executive BHEMN20065F8 H2ACBFAZ ML) - ARG L
officer of the Company (before his resignation to act as chairman EREZERAEEXBNET -EFTERAL
and chief executive officer of the Company on 2 August 2006) who BECBREREERE LEERAENEEME
is responsible for managing the Board and the Group’s business. FARESEHEREBNER - aEELER
The Board considers that Dr. Alex Yeung’s in-depth professional 2006F8A2ABEGBARTAAREERITRR
knowledge of medical and diagnostic field will definitely bring B EZERRALTERUEANERLRK
invaluable contribution to the Board. In replacement, Mr. Lui Chi Hg KO EEERE T2 ASEMNERARR
Wah, Johnny (“Mr. Lui”) was appointed as chairman and chief MEREHER - EF2NRABL—EETIR
executive officer of the Company on 2 August 2006. The Board PEESRANTNELENENTH EFEK
considers that Mr. Lui’s extensive experience in financial sector and EMERREETRER  UEHMTRTERAA
strong business network will definitely contribute to the development BENRE  UWERENGTYE  -EFSHE
and future growth of the Group. The Board also considers that this LS —EemERNAEEARBES
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between FAREEELRR BRI ERRITAEK - EF
the Board and the management of the Company. The balance of EREREECERRITREHAREYREEK
power and authority is ensured by the participation of experienced REBHREAMER - AW - BERKED
and high caliber members of the Board which meets regularly to SHBENESeNBEREEEEENTE
discuss issues affecting operations of the Company. The Board BRI EEREEREEXTRERTHRESENARY
believes that this structure is conductive to strong and consistent RERHEEBANONZEEE -

leadership, enabling the Group to make and implement decisions
promptly and efficiently. The Board has full confidence in Mr. Lui
and believes that his appointment to the posts of chairman and
chief executive officer is beneficial to the business prospects of the
Group. Nevertheless, the Board will continually review the function
of the Board and its relationship with the management, especially
the necessity and the benefits of separating the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer.

Code Provision A.4 FRIMEBIA4

This code stipulates that all directors should be subject to re- RTAREMBESRETTHERER - K
election at regular intervals. The present Articles of Association of RAREMNABERT AR TERESTRLER
the Company do not provide for retirement by rotation of a director BRAKENSESARERT - AU EERT
holding office as managing director or joint managing director. HRRBFAG L #EZBEREADAINERMA
Proposed amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company AIAFEREERERTA -

will be put forward to the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting in order to comply with the
Code on Corporate Governance practices.
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Code Provision A.4.2 FRIRBIA.4.2

This code stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a casual KTAHAEMEETH A EREERUMNE
vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders of the EENEARBEE - EARFRASLENER - K
Company at the first general meeting after their appointment. The RABRTHNERANRATE L ERERAIER
present Articles of Association of the Company only requires such MEFART-REBEFRALEE - AULERH
directors who are appointed to fill a casual vacancy to be re-elected RONBRRBERG L BRFBRARANA
at the next annual general meeting. Proposed amendments to the RAIERNFAELEEARTHRTA -

Articles of Association of the Company will be put forward to the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting in order to comply with the Code on Corporate Governance

practices.
Code Provision A.4.4 SFRIRBIA4.4

This code stipulates that listed issuers should establish a KFAPAELTARERIREZES I
nomination committee with specific written terms of reference. The NEEREHEBESRE -ZREZESE (hEM
nomination committee should, among others, (i) reviews the FE  (VBHESEMNEE  BERAKILR
structure, size and composition of the board and make EESHBAMEENEGR  (MEREERNA
recommendations to the board regarding any proposed changes; (ii) TMABESEAKE : (iTHEBIERNTES
identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members; MBELM  (WAESSHEBERESHNEGRE
(iii)) assess the independence of independent non-executive directors; FmERSESHRETE -

and (iv) make recommendations to the board on matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors.

The Company has not established a nomination committee. ARRWRBIRELEEZEESG - RZMNUES
Instead, the full Board is involved in the appointment of new SXRELEEENED  ANTSEAGINES
Directors. The Board will take into consideration criteria such as WER-LmES - L5 - HERAERER -
expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when considering EEENSETAANTEAEEBLIERNTE
new Director appointment. The Board will conduct in-depth BlREANBM -

assessment on the independence of candidates for the post of
independent non-executive Directors.

Code Provision B.1.1 SRR BIB. 1.1

This code stipulates that listed issuers should establish a ATAHAEMELTRARERIHFMNEZ B
remuneration committee with specific written terms of reference. g UNEERTHBESRE - AR FN20065F
The Company established its remuneration committee on 8 June 6H8HRVEFMEZES - EULAMA - Z%E
2006 which, as at the date of this announcement, comprises one CRE-—RRTEENMEBYIERTES - &
executive director and two independent non-executive Directors. RAMEYEEMGENREAL -

The Company is still searching for other suitable candidates.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS EERHERS
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding ARFIERESETNEF R IR FNRM

IRTA EMEEBEZGERLETEREIZER LT
RAIE5.48E5.671% - AKARARCHEFETH
BHRRXHAZTEEHHNER  MARFLTH
B EMERRENISTAIRETATA -

securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year. The Company has also
made specific enquiry to all Directors and the Company was not
aware of any non-compliance with the required standard of dealing
and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS Exg

The Board is responsible for determining the overall strategy; EEeNETEECASENBERE &
reviewing and approving the work plan of the Group; and overseeing AR EE T FETERECEERERT
the corporate governance of the Group. While the management of Al - MARBEEENETNERZRATAR
the Company is responsible for proposing and implementing the EeTEE REAEAEZEE  RETRA
work plan of the Group, executing the day-to-day operation of the EEEe X RNEMEMEE -

Group and undertaking any further responsibility as delegated by
the Board from time to time.

During the year ended 30 June 2006, the Board comprises four REZE2006F6A30B LFE  EEEMKE
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three BREOEZHNTESE  —HBIERTESR=2BY
independent non-executive Directors. The Company held four full FHTES RN EAFEANRRRAEERMRE
board meeting during year ended 30 June 2006. The following BEFgen  BERESgWAR  KENHE
shows the composition of the Board, name of individual Director LEBREENEEIHFIOT

and record of attendance of each Director:

Number of board
meeting held during
the Director’s term

of office Number of
Name of Director EEAHRNEH meeting attended
EEpE EZTEE3NRE HEERENRE
Executive Directors iﬂﬁ%?
Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex® BERE 4 4
Mr. Cheng Yan Tak, Angus Ronald® Eﬁ,@%f‘ﬁé 4 3
Mr. Cho Kam Luk® A 4 4
Ms. Yeung Tsui Mai Ling, Margaret® BIRER L@ 4 3
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Lau Kam Shan gk sE 4 2
Independent Non-executive Directors BIKHTES
Dr. Ngan Man Wong, Matthew© BNEE 3 2
Dr. Lok Kai Tsu, Kevin® B Sl 40 B 1 0
Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond® PBRIK &R S A © 4 4
Mr. Chan Po Kwong BRE L& 4 3
Mr. Wong Kin Fung® HEEEEE 1 0
Notes: HtaE -

7200658 H2HRE
1200658 522 H R 1E

Resigned on 2 August 2006
Resigned on 22 August 2006

= = = = =
s & 5 5 ®

) Resigned on 22 March 2006 20065 3A 228 R E
9 Resigned on 24 October 2005 o A2005F 104 24 B R
@  Appointed on 22 March 2006 9 HR2006F3A22BEF
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Reference is made to the Company's announcement on 22 LU A NER2006F8H228 2@ E - ARK
August 2006 that the Company no longer complies with Rules 5.05 KEREMRE  ARFBETEFABERLED
and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules since the resignation of Mr. Chan IR BNEE5.0516%5.281% « B, - RNRBBENEA]
Siu Wing, Raymond and will seek the appropriate candidate to fill TEATRAEAHEERREEN=AAN &
the vacancies as soon as practicable and within three months after REXFE ANENEHZH - 2B KR ER2006
failing to meet the requirements. With reference to the Company’s FOREMBELzEE  PABEEERERK
announcement dated 13 September 2006, in replacement, Mr. Kwok B AER2006F9A 13 EZEAB Y ERITE
Shun Tim was appointed as independent non-executive Directors on %o

13 September 2006.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FHTESRBYFHTES ZES
AND INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Kam Shan, the non-executive Director and Dr. Ngan FRTEFH S LEERBYUFENTEESA
Man Wong, Matthew and Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond, the XEBERRKRAECHARRITERZES -
independent non-executive Directors, has entered into an EHRRERFANEERETRAREEARAR
appointment letter with the Company with effect from the listing 200565 8RR BRERG /I - WELZEHE
date of the Company on GEM until the Company’s annual general BEUNEEAM—FBAH T RIEZERL -

meeting in 2005. The appointments are continued thereafter until
termination notices are serviced by either parties.

Mr. Chan Po Kwong and Mr. Wong Kin Fung have been REXEEREEEEECRETAEART
appointed as independent non-executive Directors of the Company BUFNTES  VREHAME - 551K 2006
for an initial term of two years which expiring on 30 November F11A308 &2008F 3R 218 &R °

2006 and 21 March 2008 respectively.

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim was appointed as independent non- BHETEEZERBIULIENTES VIR
executive Director for an initial period of one year which expiring T A1FE - R2007F9B12BEH °
on 12 September 2007.
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS EEHMH

The remuneration committee was established on 8 June 2006 AARIR2006F6 ASHK N FTMEB SV E
with specific terms of reference. The committee is mainly responsible REABEHE AZE2FZEHERNESEH
for making recommendation to the Board on policy and structure BREARESRAAEEBOTMBR &R
for all remuneration of directors and senior management and on THEESHBEEZRVEIAREARFUER
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for ZEHMEOBUR - K2006F67308 - AZEE R
developing policy on such remuneration. As at 30 June 2006, the ERERAEERRENFEMUBILFRTES
committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors, R—UATESHERRSE - B KLZE2006
namely Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond and Mr. Chan Po Kwong and F6H30BIL  REEGWARBITEAMEE - KA
one executive Director, namely Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex. The FHA  AZECRESHELTERRELLE
committee has not convened any meeting up to 30 June 2006. As MUBYERTEER —UATESAETER
at the date of this annual report, the committee comprises two B o

independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwok Shun Tim,
Mr. Chan Po Kwong and one executive Director, namely Mr. Lui Chi
Wah, Johnny.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION 1 BB 2 A

The auditors, RSM Nelson Wheeler, provide statutory audit AEEERZERIGHAITAZEAEMRE
services to the Group. For the year ended 30 June 2006, fee for TEZRHG - BE2006F6 8308 L FEALEY
statutory audit for the Group amounts to HK$175,000. 11750008 TIEREEERER -
AUDIT COMMITTEE ENZEES

The Company has established an audit committee with written ARFBREAERLTRUNATEBRTE
terms of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The HEREENUEZEZES - BREEGNEE
primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s BEABHALANFREMBERE  PHRE
annual report and accounts, interim reports and quarterly reports REEHRE  IRUAESSRBERRES -
and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board. The ERZEeNAEENREEARENM B HER
audit committee will also be responsible for reviewing and supervising BRERABEZERF

the Group’s financial reporting and internal control procedures.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive EREEBER-NUBUFRITESEN B
directors, namely Mr. Kwok Shun Tim, Mr. Chan Po Kwong and Mr. FEHWELEE BRELALTEREELS RS - S8
Wong Kin Fung. Mr. Kwok Shun Tim is the chairman of the R EB2006F9A 13RS EABYFNTES
committee since his appointment on 13 September 2006. The B —HEAERZESER EAFENEZ
committee has met four times during the year. ZEgCHEgMAK -

The audit committee has reviewed the Group’s audited results BREZEGKEENAEEN200656A30H
for the year ended 30 June 2006. REGEE -

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ESHUBRRNVEME

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of KAREZRET - MBRAHEEEESHE
accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring such BEREEABRESEEERRASEEERA
accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the THO-—REBRAREEZRAEANFERR®
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The M ARAINEE DERAMEEHENEEHRER
Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant BEgHEAMGR  FARZEETREEEERE
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The EIEARAEENSHEEZLER - SEFN
Directors are responsible for ensuring the appropriate accounting EREREEENEERSEW ARG -

policies are selected and applied consistently; and that judgements
and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited EZEMARERSNFERS REZE2006
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2006. FoAALFENKEERYBRE
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF TEXBREEXBI WM
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. RAAMETEEBABREER - WBARK
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial EBRHERTBHRERME7 -
statements.

An analysis of the Group's operations for the year by business FEERAFEREGDENLEEB DT
activities is set out in note 32 to the financial statements. BRI BRERME32 -

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS XENAR

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the audited AEBRFENXEIRAERBISENL
consolidated income statement on page 45 of this annual report. BREBWEE -

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in EETEBRRNEHZE20066F6 8300 IEFER
respect of the year ended 30 June 2006. g 2 e
RESERVES f

Movements in the reserves of the Group and Company during FEEREARARAFARBRBESNFBI AEH
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in RAFERBIBENGERRTHRREENH
equity and note 26 to the financial statements on pages 48 and 82 B &M 26 o
respectively of this annual report.

DONATIONS B

The Group has not made charitable and other donations during AEBRFATEBELESRAMBR
the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME - BERRE

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of FEENE BELXEEDHOFEIARY
the Group are set out in note 16 to the financial statements. BEm&MEE16 -
SUBSIDIARIES it B 2 &

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to AARMBRRAEFERNE BEmKM T
the financial statements. 17 °
SHARE CAPITAL LN

Details of the movements in share capital of the Group and KEBERERARREES O FBEHN B R
Company are set out in note 25 to the financial statements. E YRR
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BRBRE

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s ARFINEGERANEFSHE AP L&
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would B REXBRENGRATERDFBAEEZLGIM
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to BRERRZEENRN, -

existing shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY B E
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AEBEBETEAMBEENEEREESRSR
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 96 of this BEHESNAERE6E o

annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES BE . HESEERH
During the year ended 30 June 2006, the Company repurchased BZE2006E6 830 IFERER - AATREA|L
its own shares on GEM as follows: BB RS Y EEmT
Number of Aggregate
Month of shares Price per share  consideration
repurchase repurchased Highest Lowest paid
B BREXK Xz
BmE A5 g 4= == =434 BRE
HK$ HK$ HK$
T BT BT
July 2005 200547 A 3,500,000 0.207 0.178 655,796
November 2005 2005 11 H 5,984,000 0.145 0.126 822,610
9,484,000 1,478,406
The above shares were cancelled upon repurchases and FRAROERERRZHE Bt - X272
accordingly the issued share capital of the Company was reduced BRETRARRKN 2 BEER 94,8408 T
by the par value of these shares which amounted to HK$94,840. An —SHENBEZEEDNREFELFA AL
aggregate amount of HK$1,383,566 representing the premium 1,383,566 LE NI R E R Mk o

portion and brokerage expenses payable on the repurchases was
charged against the share premium account.

The Directors have regard to the market price of the Company’s EEREERBEOROEARARG 2™
shares at the time of the repurchases and considered that the B URBMBEETARTRMD 2TE - Bt
Company’s shares were undervalued in the market, so that it was ARAERBEERBELDETRMUZIFER
the appropriate time to repurchase certain shares of the Company & o

in order to support its share prices.

Apart from the repurchases of shares as disclosed above, neither Br EXCHREE 2 RIDBEEISN - EEE 200656 A
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed 30HIEFEA - ARBIHEEMNE LD AHER
any of the Company’s shares listed on GEM during the year ended BIERESR  HEXBEARQR 2 EMETRH
30 June 2006 (2005: 4,924,000 shares of the Company). (20054 : 4,924,00008 2 A2 AR RB) °
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY ARR UMD KB

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders R2006F6 A30A AR A A D RFFRIER
as at 30 June 2006 comprised the share premium and accumulated MEE R 25HB X ££20,404,614/ 7T (20054 ¢
losses which in aggregate amounts to HK$20,404,614 (2005: HK$ 44,734,475 7) - BERHEHE A FE (KB
44,734,475). Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman i) AABIMBRDEENEDRIUBRED KT
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for paying ERF MNBABTRRAERAERZAE 5
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions EEINIRIREEALREATEBKBES
of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that BRNVAKEEEINNZER - BRARAZE
immediately following the payment of distributions or dividends, BAR - REERADAEMKEMERE (BER
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary s BRE) PXAT e

course of business. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, dividends shall be payable out of the profits or other
reserves, including the share premium account, of the Company.
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SHARE OPTIONS BRE

1. Share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted 1. BREFE ([ERETE)) AERRIERZ
by the then shareholders of the Company on 20 April 2004. MR 200454 H20 B 5140 - BERRERT &1, 2 5
Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 31(a) to BERTBIREME31() -

the financial statements.

Movements of share options granted to the Directors under the RIS - B 22006F6A30HIEFE
Share Option Scheme for the year ended 30 June 2006 are as BRENEHFEOT :
follows:

Number of underlying shares in respect of which share options were granted

BREBRESRZABRGHA
Exercised/
Date of  Outstanding Cancelled/ Outstanding  Exercise
Name of Director grant  at 1/07/2005 Granted Lapsed  at 30/06/2006 price
20058 B%/ 1R2006%
7H1A B#F/ 6A30R
ESpg BAAH &7 BEE GES: HRTE  RE
HKS
-y
Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex BERRE 20/06/2005 2,222,222 - - 2,222,222 0.225
19/06/2006 - 1,000,0001%" - 1,000,000 0.105
Mr. Cheng Yan Tak, Angus Ronald BEEE 20/06/2005 669,711 - - 669,711 0.225
19/06/2006 - 500,000 - 500,000 0.105
Mrs. Yeung Tsui Mai Ling, Margaret BRERLT 20/06/2005 1,111,116 - - 1,111,111 0.225
19/06/2006 - 500,000 - 500,000 0.105
Mr. Cho Kam Luk EdlERs 20/06/2005 1,111,116 - - 1,111,11 0.225
19/06/2006 - 500,000 - 500,000 0.105
Mr. Lau Kam Shan Aelixs 20/06/2005 1,111,116 - - 1,111,11 0.225
19/06/2006 - 500,000 - 500,000 0.105
Dr. Ngan Man Wong, Matthew BAXEE 20/06/2005 1,333,3330% - - 1,333,333 0.225
19/06/2006 - 455,342080 - 455,342 0.105
Dr. Loh Kai Tsu, Kevin BEIEBEE 20/06/2005 1,333,3330%0 - - 1,333,333 0.225
Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond ¥ 20/06/2005 1,333,3330%0 - - 1,333,333 0.225
19/06/2006 - 600,000 - 600,000 0.105
Mr. Chan Po Kwong REKELE 19/06/2006 - 948493 - 948493 (0.105
Total At 10,225,265 5,003,835 - 15,229,100
Notes: ff 5t
(@) The share options are exercisable at any time for a period of three (a) EERRIER AL B ERAT = F RN EAERE
years from the date of grant. 171 »
(b) The share options are exercisable at any time for a period of ten (b) EERRE R AR M BB AT T F R AR
years from the date of grant. 171 »
(c) The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before () Z#2005F 67208 (BRERHBHAAR
20 June 2005 on which the options were granted was HK$0.225. Ak T {B R0.2258 T °
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(d) The share options are exercisable at any time for a period of three (d) EERRIER R BB R = S B E A
years from the date of grant. e -
(e) The share options are exercisable at any time for a period of ten (e) EERRIER AR M B ERERT T F BB AT ERE
years from the date of grant. 8 -
(f)  The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before (f) 12200656 A 198 (RBRER L B E) sIAA
19 June 2006 on which the options were granted was HK$0.105. A& 2 T {8 /0.1058 7T °
Movements of share options granted to eligible participants RIEE A =200656A308 HFEER
other than Directors under the Share Option Scheme for the year TEERSEE (BEERINNERENEDHE
ended 30 June 2006 are as follows: W
Number of underlying shares in respect of which share options were granted
EREBRESRZABRGHA
Exercised/
Date of  Outstanding Cancelled/ Outstanding  Exercise
grant  at 1/07/2005 Granted Lapsed  at 30/06/2006 price
R 20055 BfIR/ R2006%
7H1A B/ 6A30H
BHAS MATE BHEHT BAM MATE  THEE
HKS
B
Employees BT 26/06/2006 - 4,700,000 4,700,000 0.116
Other eligible participants EnAERSEAT 26/06/2006 - 3,600,000¢ - 3,600,000 0.116
Notes: et -
(a) The share options are exercisable at any time for a period of ten (a) FERRRE R A B BRRE R+ B R A (A
years from the date of grant. 176 -
(b) The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before (b) E#20065F6H26H (BRERTHE) AIAA
26 June 2006 on which the options were granted was HK$0.115. ARz W {E A0 1155 T »

2. Pursuant to an agreement entered into by the Company with 2. RBREBEARRBEAPIKNER200268H8HFT Y

the Chinese University on 8 August 2002 relating to the grant EHEDPYABETFAQNGELEEES TR
of a right of first refusal to the Company by the Chinese RERMEN G ZE (KB HR2003F108
University in respect of certain technology and inventions, as 31H K 2004548 16BN B R L T)
amended and supplemented by agreements dated 31 October (MBELBEEDRZ])  ARFAAURZEHH
2003 and 16 April 2004 (the “Right of First Refusal Z4FHAMR (FR2004F 6 A 18A M) BRI R H
Agreement”), share options would be granted to the Chinese BERETHXARZ - BEABRZFBTEANY
University over the period of the term of such agreements of BwERMEE31(D)
four years commencing from 18 June 2004. Details of the
agreements are set out in note 31(b) to the financial statements.
During year ended 30 June 2005, share option of 4,484,305 REZ2005F6H30B EFEAN - ARAIR
shares was granted to the Chinese University on 28 June 2005 20056 6 A 28H M A X K2 & HE R #
with exercise period from 28 December 2005 to 27 June 2010 4,484,305/ - 17{£ (B /0.223/8 7L i 1715 HAfH
and exercise price at HK$0.223. The closing price of the shares 72005 12 H28B £201066H270 - 2%
of the Company immediately before 28 June 2005 on which 200566 A28H (FERER H B ) AT AR BR
the options were granted was HK$0.223. 2 WmER02238TT ¢
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During year ended 30 June 2006, share option of 9,482,758
shares was granted to the Chinese University on 26 June 2006
with exercise period from 26 December 2006 to 25 June 2011
and exercise price at HK$0.116. The closing price of the shares
of the Company immediately before 25 June 2006 on which
the options were granted was HK$0.115.

None of the share options granted to Chinese University has
been exercised, cancelled or lapsed.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

Mr. Lui Chi Wah, Johnny (appointed on 2 August 2006)

Mr. Wu Kai (appointed on 22 August 2006)

Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex (resigned on 2 August 2006)

Mr. Cheng Yan Tak, Angus Ronald (resigned on 22 August 2006)
Mr. Cho Kam Luk (resigned on 2 August 2006)

Mrs. Yeung Tsui Mai Ling, Margaret (resigned on 2 August 2006)
Mr. Lau Kam Shan*

Dr. Ngan Man Wong, Matthew** (resigned on 22 March 2006)
Dr. Loh Kai Tsu, Kevin** (resigned on 24 October 2005)

Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond** (resigned on 22 August 2006)
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim** (appointed on 13 September 2006)

Mr. Chan Po Kwong**

Mr. Wong Kin Fung** (appointed on 22 March 2006)

*  Non-executive Director
** Independent non-executive Directors

In accordance with Article 95, Mr. Lui Chi Wah, Johnny, Mr. Wu

REZ2006F6F30B EFER » AR AR
2006F 6 H 26 M A X KB K H B R
9,482,758% + 1T {EA0.116/8 LM AT B
/2006512268 £20115 64250 » 1%
200656 4250 (BRI B 8) a2 8 ik
2z WM EA0115E T »

FRLEEITE  EHIRBORTFHRXK

BZBBE -

55
FAYTEEUFRALZESRE

BEELLE (R200658H2H E (L)
SR E (KR2006468 22 HE(T)
HEREE (R2006F8H2HE)
A LA (R2006F8H22 HR(T)
ok A (R20064E8 H2 HRIF)
BHEL LT (R2006F8H2HEM)
2l kg

AN BB A+ (R2006 3 H22 HEIT)
PESL1E B 4 ** (200510 H24 H R (T)
PR IR 48 5 A ** (R2006 8 A22 H iR 1T)
BAE L E** (R2006F9 A 13H [ET)
ERY LA (R2006F3H22HET)

* FHITEF
** BUFRITEE

RIBMAIFESK  AaEELE  RELE

Kai, Mr. Kwok Shun Tim and Mr. Wong Kin Fung shall retire from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the “2006 Annual General Meeting”).

BB RERDTRLEEENEBEERANER T
RRBERS ([2006FBEAE]) R -
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Mr. Lui Chi Wah, Johnny, Mr. Wu Ka and Mr. Kwok Shun Tim
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as respective executive
Directors and independent non-executive Director at the 2006 Annual
General Meeting. Mr. Wong Kin Fung will not offer himself for re-
election as independent non-executive Director at the 2006 Annual
General Meeting.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors for the time being, other
than a Director holding office as managing Director, shall retire at
each annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election
at the meeting.

Accordingly, Mr. Lau Kam Shan will retire at the 2006 Annual
General Meeting. Mr. Lau Kam Shan, being eligible, offers himself
for re-election as non-executive Director.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chan Po Kwong has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director for a term of two years expiring on 30
November 2006. The appointment is subject to retirement by rotation
and other related provisions as stipulated in the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Mr. Wong Kin Fung has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director for a term of two years expiring on 21 March
2008. The appointment is subject to retirement by rotation and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Articles of Association
of the Company.

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director for a term of one year expiring on 13
September 2007. The appointment is subject to retirement by
rotation and other related provisions as stipulated in the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other statutory compensation.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

oA

BEERE  RREERDAELE(BEE
) ER2006FRERE L EEREERANTE
ERBUHTEE MERLLEKTER
2006F RS FIRHEE -

BRRARAAHERAAOARFE 1121 - 1
ARAEBFORRBFEAGL =02 —HAEE
ETERHTESRLENESR) ARESE
YHEERERNE LERETE -

Bt - B2 I K AERR2006FREAE LR
F Y (REAER RHERRIFATES -

EENEREEN

REXCECEZAABIENTES 1
HA2E - BR2006FE11B30HER - BEZ T
BERANRZMAIRE MG BER
BRT-

EREAECEZAABYIRNTESAS
MEWHR2008F3A21BEH - & EwmARERT
WABTFARNGERMBEFETEOHER -

BHEELECEZAABIENTEE B
H1FR2007F9A 138 EM - ZEwARERT
WHABTFARNGZERMBEFETEOHER -

BREXHBEEEN  BRRAEERREFAES
ITEEEANESTEARARI LA ALRA
AT FAR EMBAELRE CEERERIN K
RBEHK -

BYFHBTESNED

BREAIZER ETRRB5.09EAREE YA
BBUFNTESTBUMZER - ARARRA
BELENTEFTHRAEL °

Plasmagene Biosciences Limited 46 % B & 4 #34 FRA 4] E



ANNUAL REPORT 2006 £ #

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
L

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN EERERTHRAERAROREERGHE

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES o

As at 30 June 2006, the interests of the Directors and the chief 72006F6A308 @ IRIFEFHKBE KA ([F
executives and their associates in the shares and underlying shares FREBEHED) F3521ERB LR AR BB LM
of the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the NERE T RARIEEETESFTHNIRETE
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the ([MRESFR]) BBAARR R FAAREARR
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise notified EEERARITHABREBEARARAARE
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model BHEBRENRORBEAROERDOT
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code"”), were as follows:
The Company NN

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: EENOVATHE BN A

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interests
FEROBE - SHREENE

Percentage of

the Company’s

Directly Through issued share
beneficially a controlled capital
owned Through  corporation HRAF

Name of Directors Notes B spouse EB Total BETRE

BBy fit st -3 ) EBERE REHAN At AAl

Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex HEBRBE 1 2,368,454 48,170,370 - 50,538,824 13.53%

Mrs. Yeung Tsui Mai Ling, Margaret BRERTT 2 48,170,370 2,368,454 - 50,538,824 13.53%

Mr. Cheng Yan Tak, Angus Ronald BREEE 3 - - 12,574,648 12,574,648 3.37%

Notes: fitat

1. Under the SFO, Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex will be deemed to be 1. BREEFRPEES  HEBRBESRE/R
interested in the 48,170,370 shares, representing 12.90% of the HEARBHEGRERZT (TRES)HAMN
issued share capital of the Company held by Mrs. Yeung Tsui Mai 48,170 370 R A E R - ZERMHIEAX
Ling, Margaret, his spouse and also a Director. Dr. Yeung Wah NABEITHA12.90% BEBFELEER
Hin, Alex resigned as Director on 2 August 2006. 2006 8A2HRITES — B -

2. Under the SFO, Mrs. Yeung Tsui Mai Ling, Margaret will be deemed 2. BEIHFRBERN  SHRERTEIEEER
to be interested in the 2,368,454 shares, representing 0.63% of REERBHEERBE (SARES)FEN
the issued share capital of the Company held by Dr. Yeung Wah 2,368 454t HEB R - ZERMER
Hin, Alex, her spouse and also a Director. Mrs. Yeung Tsui Mai NAIBEITHRA063% - BHREXLLLER
Ling, Margaret resigned as Director on 2 August 2006. 20065F8A2AREEEZ—H -

3. 12,574,648 shares were held by Vanbarry Corporation, representing 3. #%12,574,648f% i {7 B Vanbarry Corporation
3.37% of the Company’s shares in issue as at 30 June 2006. #AE AR FIR2006F6 /300 EEITHR
Vanbarry Corporation is wholly owned by Mr. Cheng Yan Tak, 173.37% ° Vanbarry Corporationfa 2} B & % 4
Angus Ronald. Mr. Cheng Yan Tak, Angus Ronald resigned as 2ERR - BRELEDH2006F8H22H R
Director on 22 August 2006. TEE—8 -
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Saved as disclosed above and share options granted to the BREXHBEEERINAESERENHER
Directors as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Share options” B —BFEEESIN  R200666A308 + NA T
in this Report of the Directors, none of the Directors, the chief ZEENERTRAERBEENBEALHER
executive of the Company, nor their associates had any interests or RN F S E AR E B H IR Sk ARBE IR %
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company BRIEESF RS EHFE 352168 E 2R ZIERT I
or any of its associated corporations as at 30 June 2006 as recorded MERBANEAERIAE °

in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
352 of the SFO.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES FTERRRROREBROHESR
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 30 June 2006, the following interests of 5% or more of the 72006F6 4308 LT ARBRESNAE
issued share capital and underlying shares of the Company were BHIE336KBTEARARERTNERECMAM
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the MARRA D BITRANS BRI H5%3 A F e #
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: =
The Company KA HE

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: EECOIB T EARBRNETE -

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interests
FEROBE  SOREZLE

Percentage of

the Company’s
Directly Through issued share
beneficially a controlled capital
owned Through  corporation HERRAF
Name of shareholders Notes B spouse B Total BETRE
BRRER fit st -3 1) EBER REHAF &3t ARl
Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex HEBRRE 1 2,368,454 48,170,370 - 50,538,824 13.53%
Mrs. Yeung Tsui Mai Ling, Margaret ~ B#BER &L 1 48,170,370 2,368,454 - 50,538,824 13.53%
Spring Biotech Limited Spring Biotech Limited 2 47,395,524 - - 47,395,524 12.69%
Town Health Bio-Medical FEBEENHER
Technology Limited ERAE 2 - - 477395524 47395524 12.69%
Town Health International Holdings R B IR R
Company Limited (“Town Health") BRAE([RE]) 283 - - 47395524 47,395,524 12.69%
Broad Idea International Limited Broad Idea International Limited 3 - - 47,395,524 47,395,524 12.69%
Dr. Cho Kwai Chee EETEL 3 - - 47395524 47,395,524 12.69%
Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming /. EEREL 3 - - 47395524 47,395,524 12.69%
Mr. Lui Chi Wah, Johnny BEERE 4 18,716,000 - - 18,716,000 5.01%
Mr. U Man Tong TXBELE 32,000,000 - - 32,000,000 8.57%
The Applied Research Council ERARR 46,596,000 - - 46,596,000 12.16%
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Notes:

1. Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex and Mrs. Yeung Tsui Mai Ling, Margaret
are also Directors of the Company during the year ended 30 June
2006. They both resigned as Directors on 2 August 2006.

2. Spring Biotech Limited is beneficially wholly owned by Town Health
Bio-Medical Technology Limited which in turn beneficially wholly
owned by Town Health.

3. Town Health is a company whose shares listed on GEM. As at the
date of this report, Town Health is beneficially owned as to
approximately 49.68% by Broad Idea International Limited and as
to approximately 5.83% by Prudential Plc. Broad Idea International
Limited is beneficially owned as to 50.10% by Dr. Cho Kwai Chee
and as to 49.90% by Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming J.P.. Mr. Cho
Kam Luk (the father of Dr. Cho Kwai Chee), an executive Director
of the Company who resigned on 2 August 2006, directly
beneficially owns 0.02% of Town Health.

4. Mr. Lui Chi Wah, Johnny was appointed as chairman, executive
Director, chief executive officer and a member of remuneration
committee of the Company on 2 August 2006. He was also
appointed as compliance officer of the Company on 22 August
2006.

Saved as disclosed above and share options granted to Dr. Yeung
Wah Hin, Alex, Mrs. Yeung Tsui Mai Ling, Margaret and Mr. Cho
Kam Luk under the paragraph headed “Share options” in this Report
of the Directors, the Company has not been notified by any person
(other than Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
an interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as at 30 June 2006 as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 30 June 2006, the Group’s sales to its
five largest customers and the largest customer were 37.97% and
14.94% of the total sales respectively. The Group’s purchases from
its five largest suppliers and the largest supplier were 63.73% and
16.70% of the total purchases respectively.

At no time during the year, none of the Directors, their
associates, or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had a beneficial interest in anyone of the Group’s
top five customers and suppliers during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) have any interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group during the year.

m Plasmagene Biosciences Limited 46 % B 4 4 #3 f R3]

ANNUAL REPORT 2006 £ #

et

1. REZE2006F6A30B At 2 FEARGERE
ERBHERZTNALADAES  BHR
20068 A2 R{TES -

2. Spring Biotech Limitedfs FEfE B Z £ YR HE
RAFERZEHER  RERBZEEMHNRAR
AAAEERE2EHA -

3. BREAB—ZFXBRHPBIERLETHAF - RAR
4 HH - FEf@ fBroad Idea International
Limited & 25 % A #749.68% 2 H Prudential Plc.
B2 %5 4)5.83% * Broad Idea International
Limited | HEEFEEERMA50.10% K%
SHABLERERL9.90% c ARFHITES
EeEAE(BEETEEZRE  HR2006%F
SH2HEM) EREREAREEM0.02% -

4. H2006F8H2H BEELEEZEAEAR
RZER  HITES  TRERLEFHZES
ZRE  WH2006F8 A2 EZ T AERE
£

BENFBEBRERBEAEESRENHER
BI—BRERHERETHERRBLE BHRER
THEESELAEIN - B2006F6F308 0 ARF]
THEETMAL (FRRAEERSRITHRAER
AN e E R AR DB R R SR B Rk 10 P B A IR &
BEREERIIEIB6HBECRZENL 2 B
MAREZS AR -

TEREFREES

REE2006F6 8308 IEEER - KEAREE
AREFPRBEARFPZHEEDAIMEAREEBH
E5637.97% % 14.94% » A B R A AMER &
RAREENRESI G ASERKESR
63.73%% 16.70% °

BESYUREAAZIBEALEARESHAA
BEARRAE BITRAS%IA L2 ARG ER
AEBRAARPRHEETHA TN E DR -

HEER

RAEE ARAEEREEERRRER
BR(EZRARRLETRA) HBEREREE X
BERBFAALBERBFOEETREETME

Ny
7S o

m



ANNUAL REPORT 2006  #

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
oA

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BERS

(a) Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group (a) NEBEREZE200656A30H 12 FEANME]
during the year ended 30 June 2006 are set out in note 27 to VZERNBABATRSEIRARBEREM
the financial statements. 827 -

(b) The following transaction constitute non-exempted continuing (b) BREIZRETMHRUWAT 2R SEHEHAIER
connected transactions for the Company under the GEM Listing EREBERFUBTILEE

Rules and are required to be disclosed herein:

(i) An agreement dated 23 April 2002 and supplemental () THREAERAB (BEAARNEEE2E
agreement dated 7 August 2002 were entered into between B B X 7)) £ Spring Biotech Limited (&2
Plasmagene Limited (an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary NRIBE) R20025F4 8238 713 — B
of the Company) and Spring Biotech Limited (a shareholder & WHR2002F8A7HRI L —EHE TR
of the Company) under which Plasmagene Limited agreed & Bt TREEERAARERE
to offer diagnostic testing services to Town Health, the {# (& Spring Biotech Limited ) & 4% 1% f%
ultimate holding company of Spring Biotech Limited, or NE)HEFAMBAR ([REEE])
any of its subsidiaries (the “Town Health Group”) under "2 EAFARY - AEASARESBR
the community research programme jointly run by THERERARARREEERSETT
Plasmagene Limited and Town Health Group. Mr. Cho Kam MHERRAE - WTESESHELAE
Luk, the executive Director who resigned on 2 August 20086, NERENATHTES  RAFHRT
was also a former executive director of Town Health and HAHBEARE00QWNERITRA - &
holds 0.02% issued share capital of Town Health as of the FHEBR2006F8H2H R ©

date of this annual report.

The community research programme was continued in a MBI BN 2004F7 BEENAR
limited scale in early July 2004 and HK$48,245 was received EHREHET - MREZE 200556730
for the year ended 30 June 2005. Details are set out in I FEBIRINA48,2455 T - ARAFEBH
note 27(a) to the financial statements. Sales of diagnostic MBS KR 3T 27(a) - B E 200656 A
testing services received from Spring Biotech Limited during 30B IEFJE + B Spring Biotech Limited!
the year ended 30 June 2006 was amounted to HK$12,185 B2 EASAREER12,1858TT - A
and are also set out in 27(a) to the financial statements. BFEBENY KRR T27) -

(i) A renewal of sub-tenancy agreement dated 25 April 2005 (i) A2 & EWellchamp Capital Limited

was entered into between the Company and Wellchamp (TWellchamp]) 200544 A25HEE 7
Capital Limited (“Wellchamp”) for the sharing of office for —IBHMME - LABE2005F2 4138 E
the period from 13 February 2005 to 12 February 2007 20072 A NAEAEIENAE - AME
with the monthly rental of HK$29,500. Other terms are £29,500/8 7T o H AR LRI & 2
remained the same with the previous tenancy agreement HERRMERFTE o Wellchampi AR A A
signed. Wellchamp is owned as to 97.6% by Mr. Cheng WTEERBRBRRBEZELEE (ER
Yan Tak, Angus Ronald, an executive Director (who resigned 200658228 RE) HH97.6%AHE o
on 22 August 2006) and an ultimate shareholder of the
Company.
For the year ended 30 June 2006, the net rental and utility B Z 2006668300 EFEE - A
charges received from Wellchamp was HK$365,685 (2005: Wellchamp i I € FERKEE A
HK$331,060). Details are set out in note 27(b) to the 365,685/ T (20054F : 331,060/87T) °
financial statements. BBRHBEHRTBREMZE27(0)
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This continuing connected transaction is exempted under
Rule 20.34 of the GEM Listing Rules from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement, but is subject to the
announcement and report requirements as set out in Rules
20.45 to 20.47 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors, including the non-executive and independent non-
executive Directors, consider that the above connected transactions
were entered into in the interests of the Company, in its ordinary
and usual course of business, and that the terms of the transactions
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Saved as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests in shares and underlying shares” and the
paragraph headed “Share options” in this Report of the Directors
and “Share options” in note 31 to the financial statements, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements, no
other contract of significance to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

SPONSOR’S INTEREST

As notified by First Shanghai Capital Limited (the “Sponsor”),
neither the Sponsor nor its directors, employees or associates (as
referred to in Note 3 to Rule 6.35 of the GEM Listing Rules) had any
interest in the securities of the Company or of any member of the
Group, or had any right to subscribe for or to nominate persons to
subscribe for the securities of the Company or of any member of
the Group as at 30 June 2006.

Pursuant to a sponsor agreement entered into between the
Company and the Sponsor, the Sponsor is entitled to receive a fee
for acting as the Company’s sponsor for the period from 18 June
2004 to 30 June 2006.
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oA

During the year ended 30 June 2006, First Shanghai Securities REE2006F6H830BBILZEER  £— J:
Limited, being a fellow subsidiary of the Sponsor, whose ordinary BEHFBBRAB(NRBACRRZNBAR) -
businesses involve the trading and dealing in securities (including —ﬂxiﬁ%/ﬁ&ﬁ%&{ﬁiimﬂIﬂZﬁE&
derivatives), had acted as a broker for the Company to conduct 5 BREARNBZEHLEB A ER LER
share repurchases on GEM of the Stock Exchange and received BB RRAREBRAERFEE -
commission and handling fee from the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANT EEREARGHNRER

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected RESBRIBAERSIMBEREEIN  AQF
transactions”, no contracts of significance to which the Company, ESUEMEALNE  RERARISEEMRZRM
its holding company or any of its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries BREIKHWBABMIY BERFEBRAFE
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material NEFRBRDAER 2EFRAEREHN L B
interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisted at the end of the BEEEENEA#EE -
period or at any time during the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE ENEES

The Company has established an audit committee with written RRBIKERIEZEES - WREEIZER
terms of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The FTRANFTEERACEBREESE - BE%EE
primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s ENFIEBEAEHARANFREABHE -
annual report and accounts, interim reports and quarterly reports HERERETERES  URUERMESEREER
and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board. The kig® BREZEENTAEERREELREEN
audit committee will also be responsible for reviewing and supervising HBRRBERABERERER

the Group’s financial reporting and internal control procedures.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive ERZECRBAELE REALEERE
directors, namely Mr. Kwok Shun Tim, Mr. Chan Po Kwong and Mr. BYLEECMBYIFRTESHAR c BENRR
Wong Kin Fung. Mr. Kwok Shun Tim is the chairman of the 2006F9R13HEZE% - SWERERETERE
committee since his appointment on 13 September 2006. The BEBIF - EAFERN BRZEELHTHNER
committee has met four times during the year. i o

The audit committee has reviewed the Group’s audited results BERZEBeCBHAKEH £20066A30H
for the year ended 30 June 2006. IFFENEEZMBRE -

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TEER

A report on the principal corporate governance practices RARRERAZTERCEEREAREKF
adopted by the Company is set out on page 25 to page 26 of this WEEF2ERERSE o
annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY M ER

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up FEBZEEFMBE I AESEREEY
by the Directors on the basis of the merit, qualifications and B EEREHME
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board, ARRBEEZFM I BEZTSGLZREARRT
having regard to the Company's operating results, individual RERE - ERIRBR ARSI R 2 BE M
performance and comparable market statistics. T °

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive ARFIBRAERESE  URES BB
to directors, employees and other eligible participants, details of REMEERSEATRERE  FEFEIHR
the scheme is set out in note 31(a) to the financial statements. B s mE M FE313)
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT/POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT EARE HERAREE

In July 2004, surplus cash of approximately HK$7,846,000 was R200457F - HEREBEBREZENRESR
invested in US Treasury Notes. The unrealised holding loss of the US BA#) 57,846,000 7T © MBI £200656H30H IE
Treasury Notes (included under “Other operating expenses” in the ZEENEREXBEEEERE 2 ABREBX (B
consolidated income statement) was amounted to approximately e lRaXRkEMtEEERA]H) 4 /332,000%
HK$332,000 for the year ended 30 June 2006. Such unrealised loss T o 116,332,000 TR A BRERXKRIEHEH L
of HK$332,000 was largely compensated by the attributable interest 307,000/ 7T &9 FE A5 7l B W A FTHC S ©

income of approximately HK$307,000.

The Company had disposed of the Treasury Notes in August 200658 A 17 AR A Al B A 7,524,000 JT )
2006 for a consideration of approximately HK$7,524,000. ERLELM ZRBERE -
AUDITORS BB D

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general REERFRBEFAS LBREEERTIZY
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. RSM Nelson Wheeler as auditors of MBRXGMITHRER -

the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board REESE

Lui Chi Wah, Johnny T

Chairman BEE

Hong Kong, 21 September 2006 %% 2006F9H 218
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RSM Nelson Wheeler
& B X 8 F B 1T
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
PLASMAGENE BIOSCIENCES LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 45 to 95
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and of the Group,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

AUDITORS’ REPORT
B Y iAo

BEREREYNMRBRAF
EBR
(RESHEIMELYERLA])

AEZYMEEZTIREAEEEIBNIT K
BE - ZUBREDEBREAARGTRAG
8l .

ESRRBASENER

ERREFAARREEBEQNTOMBHR
R-ERBEZFEREDTONBHRRE EF
VERAERYERRAAENETHR -

AZBMNEERRERAMAELZTENS
R UZSFUBRREFLBIER  LERER
BREBE  RUEZIIARENEEMAE - K

BT ER AR EHARATALLALE £
AREAEL -
BRMER

AREMERRBEBGHARERMNER
B ERETER I BREBREABES
AERANBEREMBBFELKEFTREBOR
& NMBRIMESREEZSTUBREGME
MBARBMAE MEETNEHRERLE
A ERAk EREMARER RELER
ERYRANREZFSAHE -
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
B Y oA A

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the ARHMERERETEZIER - ZUR
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order B—UEMRAELTENENEBEERERE #X
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance ZHMEESTNONERE  URZENBHRER
as to whether the financial statements are free from material BHEEERERRM - (FEENETE o RAZEED
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall EREEARNMAGHBRREN CENEERE
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial IMERERH - AZBMBEEMOBERIIE
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis EATIERRMHAEEAR -
for our opinion.

OPINION BER

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair KEZEMRAE  ZHBERREUNEERAT
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at HWwER BEATR BE5ER200656HA308 /I
30 June 2006 and of the results and cash flows of the Group for Bk BEEEEEZBALFEMNEERE
the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance enE UEEBREEAANKRINKERTLR
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies e
Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler EREGMA
Certified Public Accountants MEGIA
Hong Kong &5H

21 September 2006 2006F9H21H
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
B A WA R

For the year ended 30 June 2006 # %2006% 64308 [FFE

2006 2005

20065 20054

Notes HK$ HK$

k=3 &I o

Turnover EEE 6 1,368,404 1,133,297

Cost of sales 5 & AR (1,308,230) (1,048,689)

60,174 84,608

Other revenue and gains H A R e 7 1,182,374 596,679

1,242,548 681,287

Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (510,437) (556,026)

Administration expenses TR E (4,737,887) (4,097,754)

Other operating expenses Hip&EE A (5,564,684) (1,618,180)

Loss before taxation BRI EE 8 (9,570,460) (5,590,673)

Taxation 1A 9 - _
Loss attributable to equity holders ARBREEGER

of the Company 11 (9,570,460) (5,590,673)

Loss per share — basic BREE-EX 12 (2.55 centsfl)  (1.62 centsflll)

Plasmagene Biosciences Limited %746 % B £ 4 A3 4 fR 4] m



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

WA OHEE AR

As at 30 June 2006 200656 730H

ANNUAL REPORT 2006 £ #

2006 2005
20064 20054
Notes HK$ HK$
iok=3 BT BT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Intangible assets BREE 15 = 3,504,711
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 16 2,421,980 606,109
2,421,980 4,110,820
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value through REZREATEAR
profit or loss ZERMEE 18 7,398,530 =
Other investments Hpig & 19 = 7,730,989
Inventories "E 20 44,846 33,514
Trade and other receivables Z 5 & H th fE W 308 21 612,568 801,896
Cash and bank balances Re RRITER 22 18,038,807 24,862,719
26,094,751 33,429,118
Less: Current liabilities W OREBAaE
Other payables and accrued charges HiER REFER 23 652,935 546,602
Net current assets mEEEFE 25,441,816 32,882,516
Net assets AEFE 27,863,796 36,993,336
Capital and reserves BAL R
Share capital L& 25 3,735,920 3,830,760
Reserves 1t 24,127,876 33,162,576
Total equity RmEE 27,863,796 36,993,336

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 September 2006 EEZEMN200659A21 Bz

Lui Chi Wah, Johnny Wu Kai
BEE R
Director Director
EE EE
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BALANCE SHEET
¥R AR

As at 30 June 2006 20064 6H30H

2006 2005
2006 F 20054
Notes HK$ HK$
k=3 BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRRIMIRE 17(a) 795,107 8
Current assets TEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B 8 A B FR A 17(b) 48,747 15,981,350
Financial assets at fair value through REZREATEAR 18
profit or loss ZEBMEE 7,398,530 -
Other investments Hpig & 19 = 7,730,989
Other receivables and prepayments H A e U 38 K A BOE 21 387,988 359,716
Cash and bank balances B RIBITHEE 22 17,670,533 24,794,064
25,505,798 48,866,119
Less: Current liabilities W RB AR
Other payables and accrued charges Hpth eI R IH R 5+ & 23 241,045 300,892
Net current assets mEBEERE 25,264,753 48,565,227
Net assets BEFE 26,059,860 48,565,235
Capital and reserves BARGFE
Share capital B 7 25 3,735,920 3,830,760
Reserves (& 18 26 22,323,940 44,734,475
Total equity EEEE 26,059,860 48,565,235
Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 September 2006 EEEN2006F9A 21 B % &
Lui Chi Wah, Johnny Wu Kai
B R
Director Director
2 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A oA ORE 2R % W) WK

For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

Reserves
i
Share Accumu-
Share Share option lated Sub-total
capital premium reserves losses  of reserves Total
BA& RAEE BRERE R ER e #E
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Balance at 1 July 2004 R2004E7A 1B 2 &8 3,278,000 33,294,368 - (7,874,955) 25,419,413 28,697,413
First Post IPO Conversion of BRAFEERE— X
Convertible Notes ERTARSE 344,000 8,256,000 - - 825,000 8,600,000
Second Post IPO Conversion BN AFEERE X
of Convertible Notes ERTARSE 258,000 6,192,000 - - 6,192,000 6,450,000
Shares repurchase A7 [l B (49,240)  (1,114,164) - - (1,114,164)  (1,163,404)
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - (5590,673) (5590,673)  (5590,673)
Balance at 30 June 2005 2200566 H308 &
and 1 July 2005 2005F 7R 18 2 &8 3,830,760 46,628,204 ~  (13,465,628) 33,162,576 36,993,336
Shares repurchase BinEmE (94,840)  (1,383,566) = - (1,383,566) (1,478,406)
Recognition of ERAR R
share-based payment BEBZIH - - 1,919,326 - 1919326 1,919,326
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (9,570,460)  (9,570,460)  (9,570,460)
Balance at 30 June 2006 72006463308 &% 3735920 45244638 1,919,326  (23,036,088) 24,127,876 27,863,796
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

A Bl a R R

For the year ended 30 June 2006 & Z2006567330F L5 &

2006 2005
2006 F 20054
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEEHESARE
Loss before taxation BR B A B 18 (9,570,460) (5,590,673)
Adjustments for: HE
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHH 459,757 451,208
Depreciation E 679,082 371,961
Impairment losses of intangible assets BEREERERK 3,158,397 -
Interest income A WA (1,061,081) (588,062)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWME  BER
and equipment M= (108,000) -
Share-based payment expenses AR BER 2 NRER 1,919,326 -
Fair value loss of financial REZREEATE
assets at fair value through ARZEREE
profit or loss ZAFEERXR 332,459 -
Unrealised holding loss of other REHEMKREZ
investments AERERE — 114,924
Write-off of intangible assets EHE E MR = 419,087
Write-off of property, plant EI
and equipment AR 133,127 -
Operating loss before working capital BESEHHLE
changes B (4,057,393) (4,821,555)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories BEGEm wmd (11,332) 8,483
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and B REMERIE
other receivables WA, (3 0) 189,328 (78,203)
Increase/(Decrease) in other payables EmmENKETER
and accrued charges #in,/ i) 106,333 (465,900)
Net cash used in operating activities e EEMAREFE (3,773,064) (5,357,175)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREZFEREHE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B &% - M5 k& (2,628,080) (55,666)
Payments for licences and patents SRNES S E VL (113,443) (395,722)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME - BEREE
plant and equipment B8 3 IE 108,000 -
Acquisition of other investments WiE H R & = (7,845,913)
Interest received B F S 1,061,081 588,062
Net cash used in investing activities KEEHMARES S8 (1,572,442) (7,709,239)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

WA B &R R R

For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

2006 2005
20064 20054
HK$ HK$
BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEZBHREHE
Shares repurchase B fn B = (1,478,406) (1,163,404)
Net cash used in financing activities MEFETAREFE (1,478,406) (1,163,404)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRRESEEHED
CASH EQUIVALENTS B (6,823,912) (14,229,818)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FINEER
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ReEEES 24,862,719 39,092,537
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRNEER
AT END OF YEAR ReEELEHS 18,038,807 24,862,719
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH ReRREEHELEH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS by
Cash and bank balances We RRITHER 18,038,807 24,862,719
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM Board”) of the The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations (“HKASs")
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “New HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations and effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The
adoption of these New HKFRSs did not result in substantial
changes to the Group's accounting polices and amounts reported
for the current year and prior years except as stated below.

(a) Financial instruments
The adoption of HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments:
Presentation” and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” has resulted in a change
in the accounting policy relating to the classification of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sale financial assets.

HKAS 39 does not permit to recognise, derecognise and
measure financial assets and liabilities in accordance with
this standard on a retrospective basis. The Group applied
the previous Statement of Standard Accounting Practice
("SSAP") 24 "Accounting for Investments in Securities” to
investments in securities for the 2005 comparative
information. The adjustments required for the accounting
differences between previous SSAP 24 and HKAS 39 are
determined and recognised at 1 July 2005.

g

For the year ended 30 June 2006 & Z2006567330F L5 &

BB
ARANBRERERERAERAERSH
MR BEBERNDBERIA  AAA RN
RELHMERZMBRARE ([BARAM])&IX
& (T8IFR] L) -

RFEPBHRRIAETES - BLTAART
FEMBAR([AEE]) ZHEER -

ARAB—XREZRAR AT ENER
AZEEXBENMBERERMET -

HERSEITEBUBREER 2 RKH
RAEE  AEBERAFMEEZESTHSE
S ALEMKER2005F 1A 1H A
éz SHHARS A SRR FT 3 RSB R] BB B 7%

HEER (BB BRELED]) RBEBG
ﬁW&éhﬂéﬁ SHERN]) (LA T4 5
RIBBUBRELED]) - A BBUBRE
ERAHAEEARFEREFENEHBR K
8RB & 3 K MR E AR S E (BAT BTt B
4h) o

(a) #MIAE
BB ENENRIEHMTE : HE
REASTEREIGR[EHTE : R
A2 HEMEYE [CEZRRZATE
AENEREE RIAJEHEENSHE
ElIZoBEMN ST BEREKRES -

EECENFERITARFENE R
EERABHNER HEBRIANE -
AEERAA G BEHERFE 245 [FH
BE 7z e ER | REE2005F M EH IR
B ISR ERERNF24RERETE DS
R E 395 AT5l EM = EE 1R 2005%7 A
THEHAELER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mo W R B

For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments (continued)
The adoption of HKASs 32 and 39 resulted in changes in
the amounts reported in the financial statements as follows:

=

(%

(a)

MEREETERMBREEN 2R
#)

£RIA (&)

RMBEA G ER L3329 R FE395%E 3l
BUTHREMBHREP2INEEE
B :

2006 2005
2006 F 20054
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Increase in financial assets at fair KEZREATBEARZ
value through profit or loss & EE N 7,730,989 -
Decrease in other investments HMgE 2/ (7,730,989) -
Increase in fair value loss of financial KEZERAFEAEZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss T RE E LM 332,459 -
Decrease in unrealised holding loss HAEEMIEE Y
of other investments KEIRBERD (332,459) =
Share-based payment (b) ABRBDABERZHAR

The adoption of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” has
resulted in change in the accounting policy for share options
granted to directors, employees, other eligible participants
and the Chinese University of Hong Kong (the “Chinese
University”). Prior to this, the grant of share options did
not result in a charge to the income statement. Upon the
adoption of HKFRS 2, the fair value of share options at
grant date is amortised over the relevant vesting periods
and expensed to the income statement. This change in
accounting policy has been applied retrospectively.

However, the Group has taken advantage of the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 2, under which this new accounting
treatment does not apply to the following options granted:

(i) Those options granted to the eligible participants on
or before 7 November 2002; and

(i) Those options granted to the eligible participants after
7 November 2002 had vested before 1 July 2005.

This change in accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively but has no impact on the results of the
Group for the prior periods in according to the transitional
provisions.

Plasmagene Biosciences Limited -6 % B 4 4 #3 4 FR A 3]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(continued)

(b) Share-based payment (continued)
The estimated effects of changes in the accounting policies
described above on the results for the current and prior
years are as follows:

g

For the year ended 30 June 2006 & Z2006567330F L5 &

2. HBREETEBHBERE LR ZHRN

(&)

(o) ARBEBER 2R (H)
EtE L e BRI R EH A EE R
BERFEEEENTENT ¢

For the year ended

HEEE

2006 2005

2006 F 20054

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Increase in staff costs 8 TR A0 1,185,250 -
Increase in research and development 725 & B % sz 4 38 41

expenditure 734,076 -

Increase in share option reserves 2 [l (o R 48 1,919,326 -

Decrease in basic earnings per share & % E 7&K 2 F 5 4

The Group has not applied the New HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective. The application of these New
HKFRSs will not have material impact on the financial statements
of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with New HKFRSs issued by HKICPA, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain investments which are carried at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with New
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgements in the process of applying the accounting policies.
The areas involving critical judgements and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.

(0.51) centsfl =

ASBYRAERNE BHEDRERZHFT
BREMBHRELEN - KNG LHITBREYMH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WoB Bk Wik

For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 30 June. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. Control is the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents
the difference between the proceeds of the sale and the
Group's share of its net assets together with any goodwill
or capital reserve relating to the subsidiary which was not
previously charged or recognised in the consolidated income
statement and also any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised profits
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

(b) Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at
the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. Profits and
losses resulting from this translation policy are included
in the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as equity instruments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are expensed in the income statement during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost or revalued amounts
less their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are as follows:

Laboratory equipment 5 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Office equipment, furniture

and fixtures 2'/2 - 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 -5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

g

For the year ended 30 June 2006 & Z2006567330F L5 &

3. FEEMEBER A
(b) SRS (B)
(i) REERBZABBEREXF IR FR
4 £
IERZUBERHERZERBRE
RUNBEEEAR - WINERERLE
ERHEEMABUNEERANES
BN o BT B TR AR B0 1B
HREEARGERP -

FEBER PINBERESKRERR
ATEARZSRIANESTA)

MBEEZREZRRRFERBN—
2D o

(c) W%  BERRE
WE - BERREHAKAR £ REHT
EBREREBBRAK-

ErEEZBRARBIRREERDE A
BERAEE RN EHELZERR
RAZEBERT  ERZKAT EBER
BEREEXERARBULLAE (IE
) - AR EERREXHNEESE
ZHEAFARGER -

NE BEERBOTESUAGEON
EXNGHE -ERANMEZLARAS
ERASEGEBAERBERNGER
ARBRANERTEEZMEH - =

EMAFEAFHENT
ERERE 54
£{E 54
MAERE  KER

EERE 2'/, — 54F
RE 3-5%F

EEER HENEERRKERABY
ENE-HERENEHARAE -

Plasmagene Biosciences Limited 76 % B & 4 #-8A FRA 5]



3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mo W R B

For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation
begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in the income statement.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are expensed in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Intangible assets

(i) Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An
internally generated intangible asset is recognised only
if all of the following conditions are met:

- An asset is created that can be identified;

- Itis probable that the assets created will generate
future economic benefits; and

— The development cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are measured
initially at cost and are amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of the underlying
testing services which generally do not exceed twenty
years. Where no internally generated intangible asset
can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred.

(i) Patents and licenses
Patents and licenses are measured initially at purchase
cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of the relevant testing
services for periods of 7 to 15 years.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(9)

(h)

(@

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out basis.
The cost comprises purchase cost of inventories. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are either
investments held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition. These
investments are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in the income statement.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.
An allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the
allowance is the difference between the receivables’ carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition. The amount of the allowance is
recognised in the income statement.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in the income statement when an increase in
the receivables’ recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

(f)

g
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mo W R B

For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(k)

0

Revenue recognition
Revenue from the sales of diagnostic testing services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Revenue from the sales of diagnostic testing products is
recognised on the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
which generally coincide with the time when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(m) Employee benefits

(i)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group
and employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to the income statement
represents contributions payable by the Group to the
funds.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain grantees. Equity-settled share-based payments are
measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the
date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date
of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions.

The Group also provides grantees with the ability to
purchase the Company’s ordinary shares at a discount to
the current market value. The Group records an expense,
based on the fair value of the discount related to shares
expected to vest (taking in account the post vesting transfer
restrictions), on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mo W R B

For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A party is related to the Group if:

(i) directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party controls, is controlled by, or
is under common control with, the Group; has an
interest in the Group that gives it significant influence
over the Group; or has joint control over the Group;

(i) the party is an associate;
(iii) the party is a joint venture;

(iv) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or its parent;

(v) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv)
or (v); or

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Segment reporting

(r)

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products and services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting,
the Group has determined that business segments be
presented as the primary reporting format and geographical
as the secondary reporting format.

Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to the segment.
Unallocated costs mainly represent corporate expenses.
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, inventories and trade and
other receivables. Segment liabilities comprise operating
liabilities and exclude items such as tax liabilities.

Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are
determined before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except to the extent that such intra-group balances
and transactions are between Group enterprises within a
single segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one
period.

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not
yet available for use are reviewed annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may
not be recoverable.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WoB Bk Wik

For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Impairment of assets (continued)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the income statement, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in the income statement,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.

(t) Events after the balance sheet date

Events after the balance sheet date that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the balance sheet
date or those that indicate the going concern assumption
is not appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in
the financial statements. Events after the balance sheet
date that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies
described in notes 2 and 3 to the financial statements,
management has made estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The estimates and assumptions that have significant
impact on changes in value of carrying amounts of the most
significant amounts of assets /liabilities include licences and
patents and development costs.

Determining whether licences and patents and development
costs are impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount through future commercial activity which requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the developed services and products. Impairment losses may
arise when actual cash flows are less than expected.

Impairment losses of licences and patents amounted to
HK$1,156,672 (2005: nil) and development costs amounted to
HK$2,001,725 (2005: nil) respectively have been charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 June 2006.

3,

g

For the year ended 30 June 2006 & Z2006567330F L5 &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WoB Bk Wik

For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group's activities expose itself to different kinds of financial
risk. The management has been monitoring these risk exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner so as to mitigate or reduce such risks.

(a) Currency risk

The Group has assets and liabilities and transactions
denominated in foreign currency and is exposed to foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to change in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its bank balances. Bank balances expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

(c) Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at
30 June 2006 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group has
no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

(d) Price risk
The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Therefore, the Group is exposed to debt security price risk.
The management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.

Plasmagene Biosciences Limited -6 % B 4 4 #3 4 FR A 3]
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % 2006464308 It 5

6. TURNOVER 6. XM
The Group is principally engaged in sales of diagnostic testing AEEFEREZHARARSE RE @K H
services and products, and research and development relating E UHREREENEERE TEMEKR
to diagnosis of cancer and certain other illnesses. During the Ml EXFEAEEHETERLEHX
year, all of the Group’s business were carried on in Hong Kong. % e
2006 2005
2006 F 20054
HK$ HK$
B BT
Sales of diagnostic testing services 2 bR AR 1 &
and products EmiHE
Related parties HiE AT 12,185 48,245
Third parties FE=AAL 1,356,219 1,085,052
1,368,404 1,133,297
7. OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS 7. HWARKE
2006 2005
2006 F 20054
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Other revenue H e A
Interest income S KA 1,061,081 588,062
Handling charges received BRBzFEE 12,650 8,400
Sundry income HERA 643 217
1,074,374 596,679
Gains Yz
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE R
plant and equipment Fiw 2 W= 108,000 -
1,182,374 596,679
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 8. KREAIEA

Loss before taxation is stated after charging the following:

PRI AT B IR A HIBR THIR B & 51 AR ¢

2006 2005
2006 20054
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Amortisation of intangible assets EEEEE 773,845 743,485
Less: Amounts capitalised as B BRMERREKRA & H
development costs (314,088) (292,277)
Amortisation included in other STARMEEER 2B
operating expenses 459,757 451,208
Auditors’ remuneration ZELED B & 175,000 150,000
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 108,372 77,008
Depreciation rE 679,082 371,961
Exchange losses & HEL 8,171 8,159
Fair value loss of financial assets Bt A\Eth2BBRLBEEER
at fair value through profit or BAFTEAEZCREEFE
loss included in other
operating expenses 332,459 -
Impairment losses of intangible assets Bt AEMEEERS 2
included in other operating expenses BEVEERERRX 3,158,397 -
Operating leases rental in respect of KEHERS
Office premises MAE 183,300 149,686
Director's quarter EEZRE 816,000 821,400
Research and development REFEHE  BIRA
expenditure other than amortisation, RIARG BER 2 K2
staff costs and share-based payment & F ey ot 2 p 2
expenses F 52,444 395,540
Staff costs BIMA
Directors’ emoluments e 1,607,805 1,368,513
Other staff's retirement scheme H 8 Tz RKER G2
contributions fit 5% 60,440 69,219
Other staff's salaries and wages HMEI vz &M1& 1,330,746 1,497,138
Other staff's share-based payment HEMBT 2RO AER
expenses FREA 795,099 -
Other welfares H fth 18 F 18,277 47,876
3,812,367 2,982,746
Unrealised holding loss of other Bt AREMEEER A
investments included in other Hinh B o RERER
operating expenses - 114,924
Write-off of intangible assets included Bt AHEMEEER
in other operating expenses B EEMER - 419,087
Write-off of property, plant and equipment Eif ARt 2 EEH 2
included in other operating expenses ME - BE REEMBER 133,127 -
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10.

11.

12.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TAXATION
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the
Group has no assessable profits for the year.

The reconciliation between the Group’s loss before taxation
and the tax loss which is calculated based on the tax rate of
17.5% (2005: 17.5%) in Hong Kong is as follows:

9.

g

For the year ended 30 June 2006 & Z2006567330F L5 &

BIE
ARNASERFEREAILERRT G - Bt
BARBEMERIERE -

AEBRNKRBAEBIEEBERERE175%
(20054 : 17.5%) sTEMFIBELXHEERER
(N

2006 2005
20065 20054
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss before taxation bRt A& 18 (9,570,460) (5,590,673)
Tax calculated at the tax rate of 17.5% BRI ENT 5% B FIA (1,674,830) (978,368)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FA 7 TE & 7R 54 4 I B S Ak 055 6
in determining taxable profits THHNBBTE 483,784 161,579
Tax effect of income not taxable FA 5 TE FE &R 5t i ¥ R 28 78 SR A 1Y
in determining taxable profits ON:E R -4 (185,690) (102,899)
Tax effect of temporary differences AEREREZENT BT E
not recognised 438,906 128,476
Tax effect of loss not recognised REREE 2 937,830 791,212
Taxation FiIE - _
DIVIDENDS 10. R &

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the
year (2005: Nil).

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company include a loss of HK$22,946,295 (2005: HK$305,945)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss
for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Company
of HK$9,570,460 (2005: HK$5,590,673) and on the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 375,982,170 (2005:
345,897,501) in issue during the year.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended
30 June 2005 and 2006 has not been presented because the
assumed exercises of share options, which were outstanding
during the years, had anti-dilutive effects on the basic loss per
share.

11.

EAREEAARA R E SR AR (2005
FE) o

ARRABRRELEER

KRB REEGAEEREEERRA AWK
&R BRI 22,946,295/ It 2 E51E(2005:
305,945/8 1) °

12. BREE

REBZBRERBEEIRERRAREE
1hE5489,570,4607% 7T (20054F : 5,590,673/
) KRB BT BERMNE T S R
375,982,170/% (20054 : 345,897,501/%) &t

s
H o
i

£ E2005&2006F6 H30B IEFEA - AR
BROERLZBRE (MZFEEARNRKT
F) eHERENBEEREEER - I E
2 EREFEBENGERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEM &
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any FAREETELNEMNESERSEMAL
of the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the EENMARNEEHXIESELREINEE - F
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the AMEESHET MR

directors has waived any emoluments during the year.

Details of emoluments of individual executive, non-executive FEBIIT » FERITRBILIERTTE E 0B
and independent non-executive directors are set out below: SHIMT
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Directors’ and other scheme Share-based 2006
fees benefits contributions payments Total
EE  He2H RikE  URHAE 2006%F
e REMERN it 3 PANE &%
HK$ HK'$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT

For the year ended 30 June 2006  # 2200656 A 300 L £ &

Executive directors HTES
Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex (a) GEBEL (a) - 1,176,000 12,000 66,453 1,254,453
Mr. Cheng Yan Tak, Angus Ronald (b) EFBE %4 (b) - - - 33,226 33,226
Mr. Cho Kam Luk (a) BEELAE () - - - 33,226 33,226
Ms. Yeung Tsui Mai Ling, Margaret (a) B#% =% %t (a) = = = 33,226 33,226
- 1,176,000 12,000 166,131 1,354,131
Non-executive directors FUTES
Mr. Lau Kam Shan e nE - - - 33,226 33,226
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Dr. Ngan Man Wong, Matthew (c) BXERE (0 - - - 43,355 43,355
Dr. Loh Kai Tsu, Kevin (d) ESEEE (d) = = = = =
Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond (b) RAREE (b) 28,242 - 1,412 57,129 86,783
Mr. Chan Po Kwong BRERLE - - - 90,310 90,310
Mr. Wong Kin Fung HEEEA - - - - -
28,242 - 1,412 190,794 220,448
28,242 1,176,000 13,412 390,151 1,607,805
The above emoluments include the value of share options Fit e EREAARBRES IR TE
granted to certain directors under the Company’s share options TESNEREEE ZEREBERELEAR
scheme as estimated at the date of grant. Details are set out in B - B EREZ TN BREN T
note 31(a) to the financial statements. 31(a) °
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % 2006464308 It 5

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 13. EEM £ (&)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and other scheme  Share-based 2005
fees benefits  contributions payments Total
EE He 2E BiRkstE  URGARE 2005%
e REMER # BZAR A%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT

For the year ended 30 June 2005  EZ2005F6H 300 L FE

Executive directors HTEE

Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex (a) BERRE () - 1,194,400 12,000 - 1,206,400
Mr. Cheng Yan Tak, Angus Ronald (b) BRELE (b) = 156,774 5,339 = 162,113
Mr. Cho Kam Luk (a) EoBELE (a) - = - - -

Ms. Yeung Tsui Mai Ling, Margaret (a) H%FE %L (a) - - - - -

- 1,351,174 17,339 - 1,368,513
Non-executive directors FUTES
Mr. Lau Kam Shan ekt = - - - _
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Professor Chung Sheung Chee, EREAR ()

Sydney (e) = - - - _
Dr. Ngan Man Wong, Matthew () EEUE B (0 - - - - -
Dr. Loh Kai Tsu, Kevin (d) FESLEZEAE (d) - _ _ _ _
Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond (b) BRIEEREHE (b) - = = - -
Mr. Chan Po Kwong REX T = = - - _

- 1,351,174 17,339 — 1,368,513
Notes: fif &t
(@) Resigned on 2 August 2006 (a) H2006F8A2H R
(b) Resigned on 22 August 2006 (b) M2006F8A22H R
(c) Resigned on 22 March 2006 (c) 12006F3722H B
(d) Resigned on 24 October 2005 (d) F2005F 108248 E1E
(e) Resigned on 2 July 2004 (e) M2004F7R28RE
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

14. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included one (2005: one) executive director of the Company,
whose emoluments are included in note 13 above. The

14. BEME

ARARENGEEHEeNHE R E—(IH
TE % (20054 : — 1) S5 RATat 2
Migx13 - HepUfi e M4 2 &8 (20054 :

aggregate emoluments of the remaining four (2005: four) i) W& EEWT -
highest paid individuals are as follows:

2006 2005
2006F 20054
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and allowances e KRR 978,983 932,036
Retirement scheme contributions RRET B 43,725 43,540
Share-based payment expenses IR RERZNHER 287,385 =
1,310,093 975,576

The emoluments of the remaining four (2005: four) highest
paid individuals were within the following bands:

Hfu seie 2 &8 (20054 : Whz) B
KA TEEA -

Number of individuals

EE&H
2006 2005
20065 20054
HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 4 — 1,000,000 T 4 4

During the year, no emoluments have been paid or payable by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. BV EE

Group £E
Development Licences and
costs patents Total
RETRER
BB AR =yl &t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT T
Cost BN
At 1 July 2004 N2004F7H1H 3,386,610 2,727,462 6,114,072
Additions B 292,277 228,759 521,036
Write-off AR (66,250) (465,490) (531,740)
At 30 June 2005 and 1 July 2005 720056 A308 R7A1H 3,612,637 2,490,731 6,103,368
Additions 12 314,088 113,443 427,531
At 30 June 2006 720065 6 H 308 3,926,725 2,604,174 6,530,899
Accumulated amortisation and R EHERREERRX
impairment losses
At 1 July 2004 R2004%7A18 1,085,000 836,422 1,921,422
Charge to consolidated Rire ek Pk
income statement 420,000 31,208 451,208
Amount capitalised as AENAERLH 2
development costs - 292,277 292,277
Provided for the year FREE 420,000 323,485 743,485
Write-off AR = (66,250) (66,250)
At 30 June 2005 and 1 July 2005 20056 A 308 R7A1H 1,505,000 1,093,657 2,598,657
Charge to consolidated RER & Wz & MBR
income statement 420,000 39,757 459,757
Amount capitalised as REXKAERNEHEHE
development costs - 314,088 314,088
Provided for the year FRRE 420,000 353,845 773,845
Impairment losses VERIEREES 2,001,725 1,156,672 3,158,397
At 30 June 2006 720065 6H30H 3,926,725 2,604,174 6,530,899
Carrying amount EEeE
At 30 June 2006 1 2006%F 64308 - — —
At 30 June 2005 720056 H30H 2,107,637 1,397,074 3,504,711
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Licences and patents are expenditures of licences and patents
where future economic benefits are expected to flow to the
Group. For those licences and patents which the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) do not anticipate any income
flow from future testing services, the relevant costs will be
charged to the consolidated income statement in the year in
which they are incurred.

Research costs are charged to consolidated income statement
in the year in which they are incurred as research and
development expenses. Development costs are recognised as
intangible assets only when such costs are incurred for specific
testing services where recoverability can be foreseen with
reasonable assurance. Otherwise, development costs will be
charged to consolidated income statement in the year in which
they are incurred. The development costs mainly comprised (i)
consideration for the consultancy agreement paid/payable to
the Chinese University and (ii) the amortisation of licences and
patents in relation to the future testing services under
development and capitalised as development costs.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
intangible assets in 2006, having regard to the market conditions
of the Group's services. These assets are used in the Group's
research and development segment. The review led to the
recognition of impairment losses of HK$2,001,725 for
development costs and HK$1,156,672 for licences and patents,
which have been recognised in the income statement. The
recoverable amount has been determined on the basis of their
value in use. In the opinion of the management, no future cash
inflow will be generated from the relevant assets. Impairment
losses have been fully provided for the year ended 30 June
2006.
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % 2006464308 It 5

16. % BERRE

Group £5
Office
equipment,
Construction  Laboratory Leasehold furniture Motor
in progress  equipment improvements  and fixtures vehicles Total
BRE
BRz AR
HEIE B3] %8 LEE%E RE aif
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
AT BT BT AL BT BT
Cost A
At 1 July 2004 R2004£7A18 - 1,037,650 269,492 607,778 94,206 2,009,126
Additions R = 3,784 = 51,882 = 55,606
At 30 June 2005 $2005% 67308
and 1 July 2005 R7A18 - 1,041,834 269,492 659,660 94206 2,064,792
Additions =R 1,500,000 670,400 - 18,680 439,000 2,628,080
Disposal/Write-off HE/HEk - - (269,492) (385,897) (94,206) (749,595)
At 30 June 2006 $2006%65 308 1,500,000 1,711,834 - 292,443 439000 3,943,277
Accumulated depreciation ZAMERABERL
and impairment losses
At 1 July 2004 R2004E771H = 533,777 73,486 385,253 94,206 1,086,722
Charge for the year FRER = 208,223 53,898 109,840 = 371,961
At 30 June 2005 $2005% 6308
and 1 July 2005 R7A18 - 742,000 127,384 495,003 94206 1,458,683
Charge for the year ENER = 400,674 53,898 136,710 87,800 679,082
Disposal/Write-off HE /W - = (181,282) (340,980) (94,206) (616,468)
At 30 June 2006 $2006%6 308 - 1142674 = 290,823 87,800 1,521,297
Carrying amount EELE
At 30 June 2006 7200656/ 30A 1,500,000 569,160 = 1,620 351,200 2,421,980
At 30 June 2005 200564308 2 299,434 142,108 164,567 - 606,109
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16. W% - MERRE (&)
Construction in progress as at 30 June 2006 represents work in R200656 308 v EE TR EEEEHA
progress of designs and decoration in respect of a molecular —ERPOANS FARERIEEPER
testing laboratory workshop in a body-check centre which is EITRMRAREEIR -

still under construction.

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RSB AT MR
Company AT
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (a) RHIERRIAKEE
2006 2005
20065 20054
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMBKG - BRA 8 8
Share option granted to staff BEY—IWBRARE THERE
of a subsidiary 795,099 -
795,107 8
(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries (b) EYHIE R FIFIE
2006 2005
20064 20054
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NI ] 22,758,514 16,923,249
Impairment losses REEX (22,709,767) (941,899)
48,747 15,981,350
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free MUK B AR REAERF - REAE
and have no fixed terms of repayment. The amounts due & 52 50 H o 120056 8301 UK B
from subsidiaries as at 30 June 2005 amounted to A B FE A 15,981,35058 7T 2 & # R
HK$15,981,350 has been reclassified from “Non-current RAGBEEABBRPRERDEE] R
assets” to “Current assets” on the balance sheet of the BAEIRDEEIEAARAMBEREZ
Company to provide a better presentation of the Company’s BEE7 -

financial statements.
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 & Z2006567330F L5 &

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17. R B A A M= (&)

Company (continued) AF (&)

(c) The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries (0 TRHAVNETHEASEEE BER
which affect the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. BENREAREN BEROAES
The class of shares held is ordinary shares. All of these are B o BB B RE N3 2 EE * T
controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 3(a) to the RAHAEXEH 2 HBARNLE A HE
financial statements and have been consolidated into the KEBEBZHBHRESR -
Group’s financial statements.

Place of incorporation

and operation and Issued and fully Attributable Principal
Company kind of legal entity paid share capital equity interest activities
KR EE BERTR
AF WEREZERER BRRA A RA RS TERH
Direct Indirect
EE B &
Chemosino International ~ British Virgin Ordinary shares 100% = Investment
Limited Islands, Limited Us$1 holding
liability company LaR RE R
RERLES (Ep
EREEAR
3 Ben Genomics Republic of Mauritius/ Ordinary shares - 100% Research and
Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong, Limited Us$100 development
liability company gl Fff 9% B R 3
EEREAME - 100% 7T
B
EREEAR
Plasmagene Limited Hong Kong, Limited Ordinary shares = 100% Diagnostic
EmERERAA liability company HK$12,000,000 testing services
BB TR and products,
BREFLTF 12,000,000/ 7T and related
research and
development
A
R R
Em N
kAR
7R %
Hong Kong Hepatitis Hong Kong, Limited Ordinary shares = 100% Diagnostic
Diagnostic Centre liability company HK$100 testing services
Limited (formerly known &7 TR relating to
as Celltech Limited) BREADA 1007 7T certain liver
BEBFADEHR L diseases
BRAR (AT REETHRZ
Celltech Limited) Dl Al AR 7
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 18. RERRELAVFEARZEMEE
OR LOSS
Group and Company SEERAFA
2006 2005
2006F 20054
HK$ HK$
B BT
Debt securities — unlisted BHE—J LM
Five-year treasury notes IEHXERERER
of the United States 7,398,530 =
Interest rate of the five-year treasury notes of the United States ZLFREBEBERECFMNERI% - AR
is 4% per annum. The fair value of the above securities is TEREEcREBEMEHRNTISERE
determined based on the market price provided by the relevant T LileMEENAREERERRES
financial institution. The carrying value of the above financial =0

assets is classified as held for trading.

19. OTHER INVESTMENTS 19. Hitt R &
Group and Company EEREAT
Other investments as at 30 June 2005 are set out below. Upon 72005566 A30R 2 B EFRIAT « AR
the application of HKAS 39 on 1 July 2005, other investments BRI 18T EE - AMTE20054 7 1
were reclassified as “Financial assets at fair value through profit BRFEABALENFEIN  HMRER
or loss” as disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements. ENERAICBEREATEARZERE
E] -
2006 2005
2006 F 20054
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Debt securities — unlisted A5 —3LEm
Five-year treasury notes hEHEHEEESRE
of the United States - 7,730,989
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20. INVENTORIES 20. 7€
Group £E
2006 2005
2006 F 20054
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Pharmaceutical supplies B 44,846 33,514
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. EGREMEKRRIE
Group Company
£5 NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005
2006 F 20054 2006 20054
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BTt BT BT BT
Trade receivables B 5 EWRIE 144,829 130,548 = -
Deposits %% 330,335 548,817 325,235 296,959
Prepayments B FRIE 115,695 107,549 50,000 50,000
Other receivables Hofth, & Y 5 IR 21,709 14,982 12,753 12,757
612,568 801,896 387,988 359,716
The Group allows its customers with an average credit period AEERTEENTHREHEBI0KN &
of 30 days. The aging analysis of trade receivables at the balance BEAHREEANEZRKRIEBECERD
sheet date based on the invoice date, is as follows: iR N
Group
58
2006 2005
20065 20054
HK$ HK$
BT BT
0 - 30 days 0£230K 104,883 85,933
31 - 60 days 31£60K 29,935 39,775
61 - 90 days 61290K 9,281 4,140
> 90 days 28 90K 730 700
144,829 130,548
In the opinion of the directors, the carrying value of the trade BEERA  M2006F6 308 2 5 R H b fE
and other receivables at 30 June 2006 approximate to their fair WHRIBNEBEANREEREATE -

value.

Plasmagene Biosciences Limited %746 % B £ 4 A3 4 fR 4]



ANNUAL REPORT 2006 F #}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B Wk B ik

For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22. BEeERBITER
Group Company
£ AT

2006 2005 2006 2005
20065 20054 20065 20054
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEBRRFRR S 1,192,719 8,693,121 824,445 8,624,466
Short-term bank deposits RHERITER 16,846,088 16,169,598 16,846,088 16,169,598

18,038,807 24,862,719 17,670,533 24,794,064

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was KHERITE R B F % 54.98% (2005: 2.95%)
4.98 % (2005: 2.95%); these deposits will be mature within WK —1EAAEE -
one month.
23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 23 Hit BN RERETER
Group Company
£8 N
2006 2005 2006 2005
2006F 20054 2006 2005%F
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT

Other payables and accrued — E b & B K EAF &

charges 652,709 545,984 241,045 330,892
Amount due to a related FERTBE R A

company 226 618 - =

652,935 546,602 241,045 330,892

The amount due to related company is unsecured, interest free ENBEARZNBRAERR - BAHMAH
and repayable on demand. B REFERHE -
In the opinion of directors, the carrying value of other payables FEERRE 1200665308 2 Hfth fE 3K
and accrued charges at 30 June 2006 approximate to their fair REGERANEEELOREERELATE -
value.
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24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24, EERIE
Group £5
At the balance sheet date, the major components of the AEBREREANABREBEECHRBEEESS
unprovided deferred taxation of the Group are as follows: W
2006 2005
2006F 20054
HK$ HK$
B BT
(Accelerated depreciation allowance)/ (MEWEER) IMEBRIK
Excess of depreciation over tax HIEE & B FE
allowance (74,924) 11,995
Temporary difference relating to the BT RE AR
capitalisation of licences, patents RKABRILEH
and development costs A B = 2R = (525,825)
Future benefits of tax losses BIEEE 2 KRz 4,083,602 3,145,772
4,008,678 2,631,942
No deferred tax assets has been recognised as the generation HRREBRERREENERD G ETE
of future taxable profits against which the assets can be utilised HABAMNELCHEEE  RUBBRAZE
is uncertain. The tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely. EXERBEE -BEBENERAEE -
Company AT
The Company has no material deferred tax assets or liabilities. ARAWEERELEHRBEEEXBE -
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. B2
Number of Nominal
shares value
R0 #E &
HKS
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREE0.01E TR L AR KRG
Authorised ETE
At 1 July 2004, 30 June 2005 200457818 + 20054 K
and 2006 200668308 1,000,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid BETRAR
At 1 July 2004 R200457 418 327,800,000 3,278,000
First Post IPO Conversion of Convertible BRARBERE—NX
Notes (note a) BRuBREE (MFa) 34,400,000 344,000
Second Post IPO Conversion of BAARABRERE_R
Convertible Notes (note b) BHARRZ R (i FEDb) 25,800,000 258,000
Shares repurchase (note ¢) R = (FEo) (4,924,000) (49,240)
At 30 June 2005 and 1 July 2005 R 2005%6H308 7R 18 383,076,000 3,830,760
Shares repurchase (note d) A% 7 B8 1 (Ff st d) (9,484,000) (94,840)
At 30 June 2006 72006468 308 373,592,000 3,735,920
Notes: ft ot -
(@) On 14, 16 and 27 December 2002, the Company issued non- (a) M2002F 128148 * 16H X278 * A7)

interest bearing convertible notes (“Convertible Notes”) totalling
HK$21,500,000. Conversion price was fixed at HK$0.25 which
represents 50% of the price for placing and public offer of the
Company. The initial conversion of 30% of the aggregate nominal
value of the Convertible Notes (amounted to HK$6,450,000) into
25,800,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
took place on 17 June 2004 which was immediately before the
lising date of the Company’s share on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Pre IPO Conversion”). Second
conversion of 40% of the aggregate nominal value of the
Convertible Notes (amounted to HK$8,600,000) into 34,400,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company took place on
18 December 2004, the date six months after listing date of the
Company's shares on GEM (the “First Post IPO Conversion”).
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 25. R%& (&)

Notes: (continued) itz (&)

(b) The final conversion of the remaining 30% of the aggregate (b) HiE—RHARE R2005F6818H + BIAA ]
nominal value of the Convertible Notes (amounted to BRMMREIER EMABRR—FEHET ¥
HK$6,450,000) in to 25,800,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each K 1% 318 4T B #2 T #930% (36,450,0007%8
of the Company took place on 18 June 2005, the date twelve JT) 814 425,800,000/ & R EE0.01758 LM
months after the listing date of the Company’s shares on GEM AR EBEREND ((BERRHAEEREZRS
(the “Second Post IPO Conversion”). #]) -

(c) During the year ended 30 June 2005, the Company repurchased (0 REZE2005F6A30HIEZEEN @ KAAR
its own shares on GEM as follows: BIERBER ARG 2O

Number of Price per share Aggregate
Month of shares BREK consideration
repurchase repurchased Highest Lowest paid
BE A5 BERGEHE BS =43 Xtz BRE
HK$ HK'$ HK$
BT BT BT
February 2005 200542 832,000 0.240 0.238 200,465
March 2005 2005%3f 3,000,000 0.241 0.228 721,581
June 2005 2005%6 A 1,092,000 0.220 0.219 241,358
Total A&t 4,924,000 1,163,404
The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and accordingly FRHERRREZE - Bt - ARFAIZE
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the par BITRABRIUEER D 2 REERM 49,2408
value of these shares which amounted to HK$49,240. An aggregate T —SHENEBELRNDE 2 BB ME
amount of HK$1,114,164 representing to the premium portion NELRS 2 851,114,1648 TE ARG E
and brokerage expenses payable on the repurchases was charged BARFH 5 -

against the share premium account.

(d) During the year ended 30 June 2006, the Company repurchased (d) REZE2006F6H30BIEZFEEN @ KARE
its own shares on GEM as follows: BIERBERERG ZFHBNOT :

Number of Price per share Aggregate

Month of shares BRE®K consideration

repurchase repurchased Highest Lowest paid

BEAH BERGEHE 4] R Xtz BN E

HK$ HK$ HK$

B IT AT AT

July 2005 20057 A7 3,500,000 0.207 0.178 655,796

November 2005 20051181 5,984,000 0.145 0.126 822,610

Total B 9,484,000 1,478,406
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) (continued)
The above shares were cancelled upon repurchases and accordingly
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the par
value of these shares which amounted to HK$94,840. An aggregate
amount of HK$1,383,566 representing to the premium portion
and brokerage expenses payable on the repurchases was charged
against the share premium account.

26. RESERVES
Group
The Group's reserves and the movements therein are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 48.

25. B 7 (48)

et - (4&)

(d) (&)
FRBRHEBEREEHE Bt ARRZE
BARAB R ERGD 2 ZEE R D 94,8405
7T o —EREREBERO R ZRB M RE
RS 2 #%81,383,566/8 7T B £ MR 7R
BERARE8H o

26. &
%8
FERNAEENFERELERNEFHESH
FIRBASE MR A R EERMARN o

Company AT
Share
Share option Accumulated
premium reserves losses Total
1R 4 R E E4
HE & B# &3t
HKS HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 July 2004 M2004F7 818 &k 33,294,368 - (1,587,784) 31,706,584
First Post IPO Conversion of BARHBERE KX
Convertible Notes EHABRRER 8,256,000 - - 8,256,000
Second Post IPO Conversion BARHBERE X
of Convertible Notes BHRARkER 6,192,000 = - 6,192,000
Shares repurchase %17 85 2 (1,114,164) = - (1,114,164)
Loss for the year REEFEHE - = (305,945)  (305,945)
At 30 June 2005 and 1 July 2005 2005464 30H 46,628,204 - (1,893,729) 44,734,475
R7A18 #& %
Shares repurchase 7 B = (1,383,566) - - (1,383,566)
Recognition of share-based PARR 19 7 B/ 2 /PR
payments B TR - 1,919,326 - 1,919,326
Loss for the year KEEFBE = - (22,946,295) (22,946,295)
At 30 June 2006 72006496 A 308 & & 45,244,638 1,919,326 (24,840,024) 22,323,940
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26. RESERVES (continued) 26. 5 (&)

Company (continued) ATF (4E)

Nature and purpose of reserves BENED R E D

(i) Share premium () BHnE
Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, RERSHSRRE (KEE) - BRiDE
the funds in the share premium account of the Company BEAMESAHAIRTERE - ERE
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company BERENRREEREARAGHEIE
provided that immediately following the date on which the BREBRETEREINHIER -

dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they all due in the
ordinary course of business.

(i) Share option reserves (i) FEIRERE
The Company has a share option scheme under which MRS 2SN AR A AR —BRE
options to subscribe for the Company's shares have been i E BRZAEARELALTRMNAE
granted to certain directors, employees, other eligible BREEXTETES  EE - HiE5E&
participants and Chinese University as set out in note 31. BRBEATRHANXKE -
27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 2T BEATRBREH
During the year, the Group had the following transactions with AEBREFNEBEATEUNTRS

related parties:

2006 2005
2006F 20054
Nature of transactions Notes HK$ HK$
REME Kt it BT BT
Spring Biotech Limited Spring Biotech Limited
Sales of diagnostic 85 & 2 1R 5 R %
testing services a 12,185 48,245
Wellchamp Capital Limited Wellchamp Capital Limited
Net rental and utility WEMHEES KA R
charges reimbursed KE B FH b 365,685 331,060
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27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(continued)
Notes:

(a)

Sales of diagnostic testing services were made to Spring Biotech
Limited, a shareholder of the Company. The Group had trade
receivables of HK$nil and HK$1,185 due from Spring Biotech
Limited as at 30 June 2006 and 2005 respectively. Mr. Cho Kam
Luk, an executive Director (resigned on 2 August 2006), was
interested in the transactions as a beneficial shareholder of Spring
Biotech Limited. The maximum outstanding balance for the year
ended 30 June 2006 and 2005 was HK$2,765 and HK$81,750
respectively.

Pursuant to sub-lease agreements dated 29 August 2003 and 26
July 2004, the Group sub-leased part of its office premises to
Wellchamp Capital Limited (“Wellchamp”) for the period from 26
May 2003 to 12 February 2005 at a monthly rental of HK$25,000.
A renewal agreement was entered into by Company with
Wellchamp on 25 April 2005 to extend sub-leasing period to 12
February 2007 at a monthly rental of HK$29,500 (other terms
remained the same). A net amount of HK$365,685 and
HK$331,060 was paid by Wellchamp to the Group as rental and
utility charges during the year ended 30 June 2006 and 2005
respectively. Mr. Cheng Yan Tak, Angus Ronald, an executive
Director (resigned on 22 August 2006), is interested in the
transactions as a shareholder of Wellchamp. The Group had other
payable of HK$226 and HK$618 due to Wellchamp as at 30 June
2006 and 2005 respectively.

The remuneration of key management personnel during the year
was as follows:

2T. BEANETR G Rt (B)

et -

(a)

()

Il I8 % 5 46 1A AN A &) /9 B% 3 Spring Biotech
Limited 5% 2 EDAIS RS ° 720065 & 2005
F6H30H + A& EEU Spring Biotech Limited
MNESERDRIBERI8SAETT - RITEEE
& FE & 4 (R 2006F 8A 28 & fF) A Spring
Biotech Limited I B E » KRR H5HE
% ° HZE2006% 200556308 L EER K
BEREEHD B A2,7655 7T K%81,7508 7T °

IR 2003F 8 A 29H % 200447 A 268 5] 1L
Mo fEZE  ARERERAEN—BHHA
F Wellchamp Capital Limited ( [Wellchamp]) -
HiBR 120034 58 26 H #£ = 2005 28 128
1k A7#825,000% 7t © A2 & 8 Wellchampi?
2005F4A25H T L BBk - G D HHER
JERZE2007F2A 128 (EMIERERFRE) -
A#29,500 7T ° &, = 20064 % 2005F6H 30
HIEFE  WellchampRI AS B M€ &
IKEBFHH B A365,6858 7T & 331,060/
T o B8R E 4 A (R2006F8 A 220 R(E) A
Wellchamp®HITEERRE - RZERHF
BiER - AEER 20065 200596 F308 48
FE 15 Wellchamp &) £ ftb 5/ 38 5 5l 522678 7T &
618/ TT °

RAFENTREBARBZHEMT :

2006 2005

20065 20054

HKS$ HK$

BT BT

Short-term benefit SRRV 1,217,654 1,368,513
Share-based payment expenses IRHDAER 2 RER 390,151 -
1,607,805 1,368,513
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28. OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS 28 KEBENEE
(a) At the balance sheet dates, the Group and the Company (@) REHEER AEBRAQARETH
had the following outstanding commitments under non- HENESEERNRAENFE 2KZLH
cancellable operating leases in respect of director’s quarter KB THIARERAIE

and office premises as follows:

2006 2005
2006 F 20054
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —FA 252,600 1,260,000
In the second to fifth years inclusive HE_-_FHREFEAFIL (BEEHEEMK) - 458,457
252,600 1,718,457
(b) At the balance sheet dates, the Group and the Company by REEEH  AEBRAQARBEARR
had total future minimum sub-lease payments expected to R85 M8 49 ™ 78 H S AT MR R A R SR &
be received under non-cancellable sub-leases as follows: ROMBERIEBENT :
2006 2005
20064 20054
HK$ HK$
BT o
Within one year —FR - 354,000
In the second to fifth years inclusive ~SE-_FHEEFERFIL (BEEERK) - 219,143
- 573,143
29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. ERAIE
2006 2005
20064 20054
HK$ HK$
BT own
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERE
Contracted but not provided for BRI 418 R B = 260,014
As at 30 June 2006, the Group and the Company had no 7200656 A30A A& E R A A RN EE
significant capital commitment. RNERFLE o
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30. RETIREMENT SCHEME

Bl

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% or relevant
payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is matched by
employees.

The total cost charged to consolidated income statement of
HK$73,853 (2005: HK$86,558) represents contributions payable
to the scheme by the Group during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

(a) Share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company on 20 April
2004 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) may, at its discretion,
invite any employees, Directors, advisors, consultants,
licensors, distributors, suppliers, agents, customers, joint
venture partners, strategic partners and services providers
of and/or to any member of the Group whom the Board
considers in its sole discretion, to have contributed to the
Group from time to time (together “Participants”) to take
up options to subscribe for shares of the Company
("Options”).

Options granted should be accepted within 14 days from
the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the Options, the
eligible person shall pay HK$1 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant. The Options may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during the option period after the Options has
been granted by the Board. An option period is a period to
be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and
notified by the Board to each eligible person as being the
period during which any Options may be exercised, such
period to expire not later than 10 years after the date of
grant of the Options.
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FRAREB S X 1+73,8537% 5t (20054 :
86,558/8 70) fE B ¥ sZ T Bl MR - WE FELR
Bl s KRB 2EME -

BRE

(a) ARARER 2004548 20 H 5 4 58 A i
HEI((ERERTE) - AABRERA
AEBEBOKNELERMNEGERR
B o

Exe([E=g)IRRERFESSR
BRBERRETHHAKERARMNA
SER/IAREERKERANEM
BB -E= dERAA - BR - FFARE
A DB HER - KEAFR
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[28E]) BEXARBARRBROMNEK
(Bl -
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ARAARA MBI ERER T REE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The subscription price will be determined by the Board of
the Company at its absolute discretion and shall be no less
than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant which must be a business
day; and (b) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted or to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the listing date of the
Company on GEM (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). The
Company may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit at any
time subject to prior shareholders of the Company’s
approval.

No Participants shall be granted an option which, if
exercised in full, would result in such Participants becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
under all the options previously granted to him or her
which have been exercised, and, issuable under all the
outstanding options previously granted to him or her which
are for the time being subsisting and unexercised, would
exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue in any
12-month period up to the date of grant of the Options.

Unless early terminated in accordance with the terms
therein, the Share Option Scheme will remain valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on 18 June
2004.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at the shareholders’ meeting.

g

For the year ended 30 June 2006 & Z2006567330F L5 &

31. BmE (5

(a)

(%)
RBERMAARNEZE2RNGFE
F UYEABIRTI=ZFNES
T @QREER(BWAREXR) BRI
BHNEBHREXRAHNBRDETE
RO mBELNEEREXRAHANE
BRG BB D EE X BB FHR
mE: RORHEE -

RiEBEETEHERIIBELEERK
TENBREMETER AL ETHK
DRBABARNETNEIERZ LT EHH
EETRANI10% GHEIRERSE) - 0
BEARARROALEBE  ARFA
REME TS RERE -

EERUBREZERLLNER+ @A
HE - WEAMARL2BER L BRE
AEBTEMEHZ A2 RERRERRE
MZEBRMHBBERTAREMAERT
METRBREMERTRATENR
BTNBRNAFEBBEBRE HTROHA
BE1%  RIZ28EE B NERBRE -

BRIEBRESERBEGERIERRIE
G RIBERE T Z1 R 20046 A 186 #E 5t
104F HAfA M 4 F=F B A o

BEREY I THAAZTERE RN K
RRELREZES -

Plasmagene Biosciences Limited 76 % B & 4 #-8A FRA 5]



ANNUAL REPORT 2006 £ #

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B Wk B ik

For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 31. B E (&)
(@) (continued) (a) (%)
Details of the movements in share options granted under REZ2006F 63008 - FERERE
the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 30 June FERLH EREZDHFBNOT

2006 are set out as follows:

Number of underlying shares in respect of which
share options were granted

EREEREZABRGHE
Exercise Exercise/
price  Outstanding at Cancelled/  Outstanding at
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 01/07/2005 Granted Lapsed 30/06/2006
B/
120055 BHE#/ 2006567
RiLAH TRER BRTHEE TRIRERTHE BRI BAM  S0BMATE
HK$
AT
Directors Bz
20/06/2005 20/06/2005 - 19/06/2008 0.225 6,225,266 - - 6,225,266
20/06/2005 20/06/2005 - 19/06/2015 0.225 3,999,999 = - 3,999,999
19/06/2006 19/06/2006 - 18/06/2009 0.105 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
19/06/2006 19/06/2006 - 18/06/2016 0.105 = 2,003,835 - 2,003,835
Employees E&
26/06/2006 26/06/2006 - 25/06/2016 0.116 = 4,700,000 - 4,700,000
Other eligible ARERSEAL
participants
26/06/2006 26/06/2006 - 25/06/2016 0.116 - 3,600,000 - 3,600,000
Total &t 10,225,265 13,303,835 - 23,529,100
Weighted average METHTEE (E7)
exercise price (HK$) 0.2250 0.12 - 0.1610
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % 2006464308 It 5

31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 31. BRE (B)
(@) (continued) (@ (B
Details of the movements in share options granted under REZ2005F 6300 - FERERE
the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 30 June FEBRLH CEREZDHFBOT

2005 are set out as follows:

Number of underlying shares in respect of which
share options were granted

ERLBREZABRASE
Exercise Exercised/
price  Outstanding at Cancelled/  Outstanding at
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 01/07/2004 Granted Lapsed 30/06/2005
B/
20045 BHE#/  RH2005F64
REBH TESR EROEE TRIRERTHE ERE BAY  0REATE
HK$
BT
Directors Bz
20/06/2005 20/06/2005 - 19/06/2008 0.225 - 6,225,266 - 6,225,266
20/06/2005 20/06/2005 - 19/06/2015 0.225 - 3,999,999 - 3,999,999
Total ait - 10,225,265 - 10,225,265
Weighted average METFHTEE (B
exercise price (HK9) - 0.2250 - 0.2250
The options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted R E E W ARTE 2 BIRRE 2 hIRE 15 1)
average remaining contractual life of approximately 6.82 years B R4 56.829F (20054 : #)5.74%F) o
(2005: approximately 5.74 years).
Total consideration received during the year ended 30 June R2006F6A30B LFEERN - #EE - EER
2006 from directors, employees and other eligible participants HEpAER2BERIAZEXEREZET
for accepting the options granted amounted to HK$17. MEBABITHBIL °

Plasmagene Biosciences Limited %746 % B £ 4 A3 4 fR 4] m
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b) Under an agreement entered into between the Chinese

University and the Company on 8 August 2002 relating to
the grant of a right of first refusal to the Company by the
Chinese University in respect of certain technology and
inventions, as amended and supplemented by agreements
dated 31 October 2003 and 16 April 2004 (the "Right of
First Refusal Agreement”), the Company will be offered a
right of first refusal for the grant by the Chinese University
of a royalty-bearing exclusive licence to use and
commercially develop certain technologies and inventions
and other non-invasive diagnostic technologies for detecting
cancer and foetal diseases developed by Professor Lo Yuk
Ming, Dennis in future.

In return, the Company agreed to grant to the Chinese
University or such person as the Chinese University may
direct (including trustees of any funds) options to subscribe
for shares or to pay cash up to a maximum amount of
HK$4,600,000 over the period of the term of such
agreement of four years commencing from 18 June 2004.
Such grant of options will be granted to the Chinese
University at intervals of twelve months. Such options are
not intended to be granted under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 20 April 2004.

Details of the movements in share options granted to
Chinese University during the year ended 30 June 2006
are set out as follows:

31. R (8)

(b)

REBEFRXKREBERRAR2002F8H8H
FIVERRXAEETARAEBLERE
TR R EANENORZE (CRBAR
20034 108318 K% 2004548 16 8 &
Zietkan) ((BLEBERKZ]) &
RAIGZEERXAER FALFEF
BRENBRGTENELEERE 7B
FRRNEERARZELPAE AR
FTift 2 198 T Bfit R 35 AR R Eo 4 A BA 18
ERERBTERNIELGEDEH K
i o

EARE  AARRAERTHXAZY
AXABEFHAL (BEEINESLHNT
A BAHE - ATLA 2004667 18H #
SRz E AT BRRARBERO KT
RS ES%4,6000008THERE - ZE
ERESEEIERBT _EARTFHXK
B o 2 FERETEREARRQRR2004
FA4R20B RAMBRENEFD o

REZE20065F6 308 IEEER R T
NAREBZERESFHFENOT ¢

Number of underlying shares in respect of which

share options were granted

EREBREZABRGHE
Exercise Exercised/
price  Outstanding at Cancelled/  Outstanding at
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 01/07/2005 Granted Lapsed 30/06/2006
B/
1#2005% BHE#/ 2006564
BB TEAR BRTKE TRA1RERTR BRI BAM  J0BMAMTHE
HKS$
BT
28/06/2005 28/12/2005 - 27/06/2010 0.223 4,484,305 = = 4,484,305
26/06/2006 26/12/2006 - 25/06/2011 0.116 - 9,482,758 - 9,482,758
Total ait 4,484,305 9,482,758 - 13,967,063
Weighted average METFHTEE (B
exercise price (HKS) 0.2230 0.116 = 0.1504
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b) (continued)
Details of the movements in share options granted to
Chinese University during the year ended 30 June 2005
are set out as follows:

g

For the year ended 30 June 2006 & Z2006567330F L5 &

31

B ()

(&)
REZE2005F6A30H EFEEERE T+
NAREBZERESFHFBEOT ¢

(b)

Number of underlying shares in respect of which

share options were granted

ERLBREZAERASE
Exercise Exercised/
price  Outstanding at Cancelled/  Outstanding at
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 01/07/2004 Granted Lapsed 30/06/2005
Bt/
20045 Bi#/  R2005%6A
RHAH TRHR BRTEE TRAIBHATE BRM BAY  BHATE
HK$
BT
28/06/2005 28/12/2005 - 27/06/2010 0.223 - 4,484,305 - 4,484,305
Weighted average METFHTEE (B
exercise price (HK$) - 0.2230 - 0.2230

The options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of approximately 4.18 years
(2005: approximately 4.5 years).

As disclosed in note 2(b) to the financial statements, for share
options granted and vested before 1 July 2005 did not result in
a charge to the income statement. When the grantees chose to
exercise the options, the nominal amounts of share capital and
share premium were credited only to the extent of the option’s
exercise price receivable.

The fair value of share options of the 5,003,835 shares granted
to directors, 4,700,000 shares granted to employees, 3,600,000
shares granted to other eligible participants and 9,482,758
shares granted to Chinese University during the year ended 30
June 2006 amounted to approximately HK$390,000,
HK$450,000, HK$345,000 and HK$734,000 respectively. An
amount of approximately HK$1,919,000 (representing the
aggregate fair values of all share options granted during the
year ended 30 June 2006) was credited to share option reserves.

Plasmagene

R F [E R KT 2 B IR A 2 D S 49 1% 4
BUEA) A4.184F (2005 : #94.5%) o

MR 5 RRIFE2D)PAINE - % F M 20055
TRIERMBEE R GE 2 BREL Rt kaR
XA - EREANEBITEBRER LA
BAEBRNEEAEETNSBTEERZ
EHEBEZRRITERE -

REE2006F6 A30RILEFE RTEEZZ
5,003,835/ Bl #E - T 1B 8.,24,700,000/%
BhiE RTHEMAEKRLEE 23,600,000
IR BB AR HE X T R UK 229,482, 7585 BB ik
2z RN EDFIIEF 4 A390,000% T
450,000/ 7T ~ 345,000/ 7T K 734,000/ T °
#71,919,000/%8 7T 2 € %8 (BN & £ 20066 A
0B LFEAMBERHBEREZAFELZ
BN EEAEREREBECER -

Biosciences Limited %763 B £ 4 #38 R3]
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 31. BRE (&)
(b) (continued) (b) (#8)
The fair values of share options granted were determined BEEERENATENEHFNETER
using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The significant ARETE - ZRANFTEGBAETR
inputs into the model were as follows:

Share options grant date

BRERLBH
19/06/2006 26/06/2006
20066 H 198 2006%6H 26H
Share price at the grant date (HK$) REEBOKRE (BT 0.105 0.115
Exercise price (HK$) 718 (BL) 0.105 0.116
Expected volatility based on R IR AR B 1 JE 2K 8 HE E Y
historical volatility of share prices (%) 8 HA R 18 (%) 98.41 98.41
Expected annual dividend yield, BEELRSEENTEH
based on historical dividend (%) FRFE K (%) 0 0
Weighted average of expected life FERIE 2 A MET S EHR ()
of options (years) 5.8 5.5
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes rate REH BEERETERESR
for corresponding estimated expected ZEBINEESZHRIETRE(%)
life indicated at the date of grant (%) 4.81-4.92 4.62 - 4.83

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 537
days. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management'’s best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral considerations.

m Plasmagene Biosciences Limited -6 % B 4 4 #3 4 FR A 3]
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % 2006464308 It 5

32. STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENTS 32. By MRARH
Segment information is provided as follows: DEERAT
Group &8
Business activities Principal activities EBED TEXK
Sales of diagnostic testing The use of blood test and 2 R 5 AR 75 150 F B I S BT 4 A (L 4%
services Fibroscan test in the diagnosis ZHE fil Bl A A 2 B IE IR
of cancerous and certain liver BRETHEREA
and other diseases. R e
Research and development Research and development relating T 72 62 9 B¢ E@ZERERETH
to diagnosis of cancer and ftb F 775 O i 7 B2 B
certain other illnesses. T
(a) By business activities (a) BEHBZEDHE
Results E
Sales of
diagnosis Research and
testing services development Total
PEHURREZHE MERBLR &%
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
2006 F 20054 20064 20054 20065 20054

HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$
AT oy oy oy AT AT

REVENUE WA
External sales SNEBHE 1,368,404 1,133,297 = - 1,368,404 1,133,297

CONTRIBUTION TO LOSS REZEzEEEM

FROM OPERATIONS (5,914,161) (3,618,822) (4,384,921) (2,444,989) (10,299,082) (6,063,811)
Interest income HEMA 1,061,081 588,062
Fair value loss of financial &EZKERAFE

assets at fair value ARZEREE

through profit or loss (332,459) -
Unrealised holding loss of #BEMBKEEZ

other investments AERER - (114,924)
Taxation HIE = -
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE AARRREEER

TO EQUITY HOLDERS

OF THE COMPANY (9,570,460) (5,590,673)

Plasmagene Biosciences Limited %746 % B £ 4 A3 4 fR 4] m
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 # Z2006%6 7308 L& &

32. STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENTS

(continued)
Group (continued)

32. B WMRALEHK (&)

&8 (%)

(a) By business activities (continued)

(b)

Plasmagene Biosciences Limited -6 % B 4 4 #3 4 FR A 3]

(@) BEFEEHDHE (B)

Assets and liabilities BEERERE
Sales of
diagnosis Research and
testing services development Total
DE
HHARE2HE MRS At
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
20064 20054 20064 20055 20064 20054
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 20,834,321 13,486,411 283,880 16,322,538 21,118,201 29,808,949
Unallocated assets ADBEE 7,398,530 7,730,989
28,516,731 37,539,938
LIABILITIES =R
Segment liabilities HEWEE 633,695 358,842 19,240 187,760 652,935 546,602
Other information H fth &
Sales of
diagnosis Research and
testing services development Total
D
BN A MEEMER &t
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
20065 20054 20065 20054 2006 20055
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT B BT
Capital expenditure BARYH 2,655,016 120,021 86,507 164404 2741523 284425
Depreciation and HEREH
amortisation 1,138,839 823,169 - - 1,138,839 823,169
Impairment losses of ENEEZ
intangible assets HEEX - - 3,158,397 - 3,158,397 -
Write-off of intangible assets &7 & Elif & - - - 419,087 = 419,087
Fair value loss of financial ~ @BHERRATEAR
assets at fair value through 24 BEE - KDE
profit or loss - unallocated - - - - 332,459 -
Unrealised holding loss of ~ #BHMIFE Z REHR
other investments BRE-K7R -
- unallocated - - - - - 114,924

By geographical location
The revenue and results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the years ended 30 June 2005 and 2006 are derived
wholly from customers located in one geographical market,

namely Hong Kong.

(b) HHEDE

REB R E 20059 200696 A30H
IMFENRARESE BEHEEZR

i

BARBE—HEMHNEF  0F
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33.

34.

35.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

Subsequent to 30 June 2006, the Company had disposed of its
investment in the five-year treasury notes of the United States
for a consideration of approximately HK$7,524,000.

Save as disclosed above, no material significant events took
place subsequent to 30 June 2006.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified as the result
of the changes in accounting policies. In addition, comparative
figures of amounts due from subsidiaries have also been
reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.
The directors consider that these changes provide a more
appropriate presentation of the state of affairs of the Company.
Further details are disclosed in notes 2 and 17 to the financial
statements.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of Directors on 21 September 2006.

ﬁii’%ﬁi%l‘ﬁ%i‘

For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % 2006464308 It 5

B.AEEHAEER
200656 A30B A ANRIE HELFFEE
BB ERE  (EE4AT,524,0008 T °

% ECRTIR RSN - 200656 A308 & &S
AEEHBEE o
34. LB HE

AR HRNNEE THRBBECEN D
B oo ghsh o EARHEB QR SR Z L REIE T
EERSTBUNEAFREZEZNAA - BE
ERRULEHEERAEHBRARTNE
B - E—FHOFBER AR BRRME2
BATHRE -

WOf B S R &
R ERRDN2006F9 721 HEEE K8
KRR FIE -

358
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
L )

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AEERBETEVREENEEREER
Group for the last five financial years is set out below: BEMEHIWMT :

Year ended 30 June

BZ6HA30RLEE
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
2006 20054 2004F 2003F 20024
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT

RESULTS ES

Turnover EER 1,368,404 1,133,297 1,741,605 1,339,250 525,545

Loss for the year and /NG gt

attribute to equity holder  [Efh REE
of the Company B8 (9,570,460) (5,590,673) (4,234,304) (4,721,473) (3,065,794)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

Total assets BEE 28,516,731 37,539,938 44,973,281 31,537,078 7,904,547

Total liabilities BaE 652,935 546,602 16,275,868 27,440,569 7,086,665

Net assets EEFE 27,863,796 36,993,336 28,697,413 4,096,509 817,882

Notes: et -

1. The results and assets and liabilities for the two years ended 30 June 1. EXFT25I% 220024 % 2003456 A 308 IEM{EF
2002 and 2003 presented above have been extracted from the ERXEREEREEHRHEE B H/R2004F6A
Company’s prospectus dated 8 June 2004 which were prepared on a SHMALNRIBRER  ZFBHNIREHELER
combined basis as if the Group structure had been in existence 2 HNAEERBEREEBFEA—ERE * U
throughout the years concerned to reflect the full year results and [ B 7N £ B 72 200249 A 20 B # 17 & 48 71 79 /R 18 F
assets and liabilities of the Group for the two years prior to the EN2FEEREERARE -
reorganisation of the Group on 20 September 2002.

2. The results and assets and liabilities for the years ended 30 June 2004, 2. EXFT25I#%220045 - 20054 %2006%6HA30H
2005 and 2006 presented above have been extracted from the published IEFENXEREEREBNREERRAMESR
audited financial statements.. ZE MR
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